
 

 
 

 
 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Date: Wednesday, 7 November 2018 
 

Time:  6.30 p.m. 
 

Place:  Committee Rooms 2 & 3, Trafford Town Hall, 
Talbot Road, Stretford M32 0TH 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  
 

1.  ATTENDANCES   
 
To note attendances, including Officers, and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  MINUTES   
 
To receive and, if so determined, to agree as a correct record the Minutes of 
the meeting held on 3 October 2018. 
 

 
 
 

1 - 6 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 
 

 

4.  2019/20 DRAFT BUDGET PRESENTATION BY THE LEADER OF THE 
COUNCIL, INCLUDING UPDATE ON THE INVESTMENT STRATEGY   
 
To receive a presentation of the Leader of the Council on the 2019/20 Draft 
Budget Proposals, including an update on the Investment Strategy. 
 
Note: The 2019/20 Draft Budget Report is included as part of the agenda. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

7 - 88 

5.  CONSTITUTION WORKING GROUP - PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE 
COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION   
 
To receive a report of the Corporate Director for Governance & Community 
Strategy and Monitoring Officer. 
 

 
 
 
 

89 - 94 

Public Document Pack



Scrutiny Committee - Wednesday, 7 November 2018 
   

 

 

6.  OVERVIEW REPORT   
 
To receive a report of the Scrutiny Committee Chair. 
 

 
 

95 - 108 

7.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   
 
Any other item or items which, by reason of special circumstances (to be 
specified), the Chair of the meeting is of the opinion should be considered at 
this meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 

 

 
JIM TAYLOR 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Committee 
 
Councillors D. Acton (Chair), C. Boyes (Vice-Chair), R. Bowker, J. Coupe, J. Holden, 
A. New, B. Shaw, S. Taylor, S. Thomas, A.J. Williams, M. Young, R. Chilton (ex-Officio) 
and D. Western (ex-Officio) 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 
Chris Gaffey, Democratic & Scrutiny Officer  
Tel: 0161 912 2019 
Email: chris.gaffey@trafford.gov.uk  
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 30 October 2018 by the Legal and Democratic 
Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford  
M32 0TH. 
 
Any person wishing to photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to 
inform Democratic Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the 
meeting. 
 
Please contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if 
you intend to do this or have any queries. 



 

 
1 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
3 OCTOBER 2018 
 
PRESENT  
 
Councillor D. Acton (in the Chair). 
Councillors C. Boyes (Vice-Chair), R. Bowker, J. Coupe, A. New, S. Taylor, 
S. Thomas, A.J. Williams and M. Young 
 
Also Present 
Cllr S. Adshead - Executive Member for Environment, Air Quality & Climate Change 
Cllr M. Cordingley - Executive Member for Finance 
Cllr M. Freeman - Executive Member for Constitutional Reform & Resident Engagement 
Cllr. K. Proctor - Executive Member for Communities & Housing 
 
In attendance 
N. Bishop  - Corporate Director, Finance and Systems 
J. Le Fevre  - Corporate Director, Governance & Community Strategy 
R. Roe  - Corporate Director, Place 
C. Gaffey  - Democratic & Scrutiny Officer 
 
APOLOGIES 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. Holden, B. Shaw, R. Chilton 
(Ex-Officio) and D. Western (Ex-Officio). 
 

12. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2018, be agreed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
13. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interests were made by Members. 
 

14. EXECUTIVE'S RESPONSE TO THE TASK AND FINISH GROUP REVIEW OF THE 
COUNCIL'S CRM SYSTEM  
 
The Committee received a report of the Executive Member for Constitutional Reform 
and Resident Engagement. The report provided a response to the Scrutiny 
Committee’s Task and Finish Group report and recommendations following a review 
of the Council’s Customer Relationship Manager (CRM) system, which was 
presented to the Executive at their meeting on 29 January 2018. 
 
Following the appointment of a Chief Digital Officer, an IT strategy was being 
developed with the aim of improving the Council’s digital services. Enhancements to 
the Council’s intranet system were scheduled for the New Year, as well as 
improvements to the Council’s website. An honest appraisal of the Council’s CRM 
system was ongoing, with advice sought from key officers on how this could be 
improved. The objective would be to give residents confidence in using these digital 
interfaces. Members welcomed the suggested enhancements to the Council website, 
which would be conducted in house by Council staff. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Scrutiny Committee  
3 October 2018 

 

 

 
2 

 
The report detailed the progress made against implementing the remaining services 
in the programme, set out on page 3 of the third supplementary agenda. Some of the 
service areas had recently gone live, whilst others were at the final testing stage. 
Although some areas had been de-scoped from the programme for the time being, 
the Council remained committed to the C360 system, and a programme of C360 
awareness sessions would be offered to all Elected Members in the coming weeks. 
Dates for this training had not yet been agreed, but Members would be contacted in 
due course to canvass for availability. 
 
When logging an incident on the C360 system, the Vice-Chair requested that more 
information be provided in the confirmation email sent to service users. These emails 
currently included a reference number only, which made incidents difficult to track if 
multiple reports had been raised. The Corporate Director for Governance and 
Community Strategy agreed to feed this back to the CRM Project Team. 
 
The Chair requested that a further update be brought to a future meeting of the 
Committee, with the Chief Digital Officer invited to attend. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1) That the report be noted. 
 

2) That a further report on the implementation of the CRM programme be brought 
to a future meeting of the Scrutiny Committee. 

 
15. 2019/20 BUDGET GAP AND ASSUMPTIONS / PROGRESS AGAINST THE 

FINANCIAL RISKS IDENTIFIED AS PART OF THE 2018/19 BUDGET SCRUTINY 
PROCESS  
 
The Committee received a presentation of the Corporate Director for Finance and 
Systems providing information in relation to the budget challenges and assumptions 
for 2019/20, as well as an update on the 2018/19 savings programme. The 
presentation was considered under the ‘Overview Report’ item, as it had been 
omitted from the original agenda in error. 
 
The gross budget gap for 2019/20 was approximately £12m, and the Corporate 
Leadership Team and other Senior Officers had been tasked with submitting 
proposals to identify possible efficiency savings and income generation opportunities 
to address the shortfall. The 2019/20 Draft Budget Proposals would be presented to 
the Executive on 15 October 2018 before being presented to the Scrutiny Committee 
on 7 November 2018. Following the autumn statement and the Budget Scrutiny 
process, the final proposals would be presented to full Council at their meeting in 
February 2019. 
 
Members discussed the 100% business rates retention scheme, which had replaced 
the revenue support grant previously provided by central Government. Although 
Trafford currently benefited from the scheme, a reset of the formula was scheduled 
for 2021, which could significantly reduce the amount of income Trafford receives for 
their business rates growth. It was also noted that a substantial amount of funds were 

Page 2



Scrutiny Committee  
3 October 2018 

 

 

 
3 

set aside to cover ongoing business rates appeals, roughly 50% of which were 
lodged by businesses located at the Trafford Centre and Trafford Park. If an appeal 
was unsuccessful, the funds set aside for this could be released from the reserves for 
use in the wider budget. 
 
Page 17 of the second supplementary agenda listed the savings programme 
proposed for the 2018/19 budget. Members were advised that the savings attributed 
with a red ‘RAG’ rating related to some savings at Sale Waterside which may not 
being achieved, as well as some potentially missed savings targets in the Adults 
budget. These were regularly reported in the budget monitor reports presented to the 
Executive and the Accounts & Audit Committee. 
 
The Chair asked for more detailed information in relation to the reserves listed on 
page 18 of the second supplementary agenda, and how the decisions were made on 
how these were allocated. The Corporate Director for Finance and Systems advised 
that the reserves were regularly reviewed, but more detailed information could be 
provided if required. It was agreed that the Chair would meet with the Corporate 
Director for Finance and Systems following the meeting to review aspects of the 
reserves, and would report back to the Committee with any relevant information. 
 
Members discussed the Investment Fund and Strategy. The strategy aimed to 
provide the Council with more capital growth, which would in turn provide better 
returns on investments. The figures listed on page 19 on the second supplementary 
agenda were the net additional income expected from these investments, taking 
interest and the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) into account. The Council was 
required to set aside funds to ensure any borrowing for investments could be paid 
back. At the end of the period, the funds built up in the MRP would be used to pay 
back the loan, with the Authority then owning the asset. 
 
Members asked whether fees and charges could be considered for additional income 
generation. The Committee were advised that these were treated as ‘negative costs’, 
with most services only allowed to cover their own costs and could not legally make a 
profit (e.g. licencing fees). Also, the fees for some services were set at a level to 
ensure they were affordable and used by residents, with the Council only recovering 
the cost associated with providing these services (e.g. pest control). 
 
The Committee thanked the Corporate Director for Finance and Systems for the 
report and looked forward to the presenting of the 2019/20 Draft Budget Proposals at 
the Scrutiny Committee meeting on 7 November 2018. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1) That the update be noted. 
 

2) That the Chair meets with the Corporate Director for Finance and Systems 
following the meeting to discuss aspects of the budget reserves in more detail. 

 
 
 

Page 3



Scrutiny Committee  
3 October 2018 

 

 

 
4 

16. REPORT ON COMPLAINTS DETERMINED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND 
SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN 2017/18  
 
The Committee received a report of the Executive Member for Constitutional Reform 
and Resident Engagement providing information on adverse outcomes of complaints 
formally investigated by the Local Government & Social Care Ombudsman. The 
report set out a summary of complaints determined in 2017/18. 
 
 RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

17. FIRE SAFETY IN HIGH RISE TOWER BLOCKS - UPDATE  
 
The Committee received a report of the Corporate Director for Place providing a 
further update on Trafford’s current position in relation to fire safety in high rise 
housing following the tragic events at Grenfell Tower. 
 
The Executive Member for Communities and Housing presented the report. As 
reported previously, all five Trafford Housing Trust (THT) high rise buildings had been 
identified as having combustible cladding that would need replacement or other 
remedial treatment in order to reduce the risk of fire. Due to the significant works 
required, sourcing the funds to complete the work had caused a delay in 
commencing the remedial works. The Committee were assured that regular 
discussions with Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Service (GMFRS) and THT 
would continue, and discussions with professional experts had been held to source 
the correct replacement materials. 
 
The plans for the proposed panel replacement works to the tower blocks had now 
been submitted to Trafford Council’s Building Control Service for review, and it was 
anticipated that the installations would commence before Christmas 2018 and would 
be completed during 2019.  
 
The Chair recommended that that the fire safety proposals in the report be extended 
to hospitals, care homes and schools, and noted that the lack of sprinklers in these 
types of buildings, along with high rise buildings, was an issue that should be 
considered. Concerns were also raised about the Grenfell Tower enquiry’s decision 
to only ban combustible cladding on high rise towers of 18 floors or more, a ban 
which would not be applied retrospectively. 
 
The Corporate Director for Place agreed to raise the issue of sprinklers with THT, 
however Members were advised of the difficulties and cost associated with retrofitting 
sprinklers. The Committee were assured that the Council was fully commitment to 
implementing the recommendations made as part of the Grenfell enquiry, and were 
confident that the Council was compliant with all current fire safety regulations. The 
Chair suggested that GMFRS be invited to meet with Council Officers and Members 
to discuss the options available for retrofitting sprinklers. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1) That the update be noted. 
 

Page 4



Scrutiny Committee  
3 October 2018 

 

 

 
5 

2) That a further report on the fire safety be brought to a future meeting of the 
Scrutiny Committee. 

 
18. REDUCING SINGLE USE PLASTIC IN TRAFFORD  

 
The Committee received a copy of a motion recently considered and agreed at a 
meeting of full Council, confirming Trafford’s commitment to reducing the use of 
single use plastic. A supplementary report of the Executive Member for the 
Environment, Air Quality and Climate Change accompanied the original motion. 
 
Members were pleased with the progress made and felt this was a good opportunity 
for the Council to lead by example on an important issue. A ban on the use of single 
use plastic cups in the Town Hall and at Sale Waterside was now in effect, and 
alternatives to other single use plastic items were being sourced. The Executive 
Member for the Environment, Air Quality and Climate Change personally thanked 
Phil Valentine, Environment Strategic Business Manager, for the work he had done 
so far to drive this forward. 
 
Members suggested that these changes should be extended to all areas where 
Council services are provided, including schools. The Council should also try to 
encourage local businesses to adopt similar measures. 
 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. 
 

19. OVERVIEW REPORT  
 
The Committee received a report of the Scrutiny Committee Chair providing 
information on the work programme, task & finish group reviews, scrutiny 
recommendations, and a summary of Executive decisions. 
 
It was noted that the Task & Finish Group conducting the review of the One Trafford 
Partnership had met on a number of occasions, and work would now begin on 
producing a report of the Group’s findings. The final report would be brought to a 
future meeting of the Scrutiny Committee for Members’ consideration. 
 
Prior to the meeting, Committee Members had been asked to familiarise themselves 
with the Council’s Housing Strategy. The Chairman recommended that a Task & 
Finish Group, chaired by Cllr Aiden Williams, be setup to conduct a review of housing 
in Trafford focusing mainly on affordability, allocation and social strategy. Any 
Members who wished to take part in the review were asked to contact Democratic 
Services to register their interest following the meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1) That the report be noted 
 

2) That a Task & Finish Group be formed to conduct a review of the Council’s 
Housing Strategy. 

 
The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and finished at 7.56 pm 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Reshaping Trafford Council 

Scrutiny Committee – 7 November 2018

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 4



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 2

Agenda Item

2018/19 Budget Scrutiny Process

The Leader is to provide a presentation to the 

Committee on the draft budget proposals.

To receive an update on the Investment 

Strategy.

Agenda

P
age 8



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 

§ Stage 1 (Previous Session)

§ Review of the current MTFP position

§ Understanding the Funding Gap

§ Review of the Budget Assumptions

§ Plans for consultation

§ Progress on achievement of 18/19 savings

§ Draft Budget to Executive 15 October 2018 

§ Stage 2 (This Session)

§ Leader to present budget proposals to Scrutiny on 7 
November 2017

§ Scrutiny review of budget proposals

§ Investment Portfolio Update

3

Scrutiny Process

P
age 9



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 4

Draft Budget Proposals – Addressing 

the Budget Gap

Summary of Budget Proposals

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Gross Budget Gap (Oct 18) 12,095 22,533 6,744 41,372

Policy Choice Funding Proposals

Reinstate Adult Social Care Precept 

increase 1%
(950) 0 0 (950)

General Increase in basic Council Tax to 

2.99% 
(2,839) (2,973) (3,080) (8,892)

Contribution from Budget Support/ 

Business Rate Smoothing Reserves
0 (7,300) 7,300 0

Total Policy Choice Funding (3,789) (10,273) 4,220 (9,842)

Savings and Income proposals (5,943) (1,885) 1,645 (6,183)

Revised Budget Gap (Draft) Oct 18 2,363 10,375 12,609 25,347

P
age 10



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 

Description of Saving

2019/20

£000’s

2020/21

£000’s

2021/22

£000’s

Additional income Green Waste Charges (395)

CCTV New Trading Model (15)

Strategic Investment Income (214)

Net Income from Invest Props 871 (150)

Existing Income Proposals 247 (150)

Net Income from Invest Props (identified) (1,500) (400) 1,900

Increase in Strategic Investment Income (1,500) (500)

Review of Car Parking charges (84) (73)

Environmental Health - Increase Fee 

Income (various)
(27) (5) (5)

Licensing - knowledge test charge (20)

Total New Income Proposals Oct 2018 (3,131) (978) 1,895

Total Existing and New Income 

Proposals
(2,884) (1,128) 1,895

5

Income Proposals

P
age 11



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 6

Savings Proposals

Description of Saving

2019/20

£000’s

2020/21

£000’s

2021/22

£000’s

Mandatory Recycling (161)

Early Repayment of Suppliers Discount (50) (100)

Total Existing Saving Proposals (211) (100)

Reduction in Insurance costs (50)

Reduction in External Children's Home Use (371)

Creation of New Post 16 Accommodation (202)

Let’s Talk (160)

Right Care For You (200)

Adults Re-assessments (200)

Development Management (Planning Performance) (35)

Strategic Planning - Remove Greenspace funding 

contingency budget
(40)

Allotment Services - removal of subsidy (20)

Environmental Health - Reduce budget of dog warden 

service 
(5)

P
age 12



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 7

Savings Proposals (cont�..)

Description of Saving

2019/20

£000’s

2020/21

£000’s

2021/22

£000’s

Customer Services - reduce contact centre opening 

hours
(21)

Legal - CCG legal costs (10)

Legal - appoint litigation solicitor/reduce external costs (20)

Housing Strategy - reduce running costs (10)

Partnerships - use of smoothing reserve - one off (100) 100

New Strategic Investment (250)

STAR contribution (36)

Reinstate saving GMPF Early Retirements Allowance (350)

Advance Pension Payment (757)

Remove General Inflation provision (218)

Reduce General Contingency (600)

Debt Restructure savings (200)

Total New Savings Proposals 2018 (2,848) (657) (250)

Total existing and new Savings Proposals (3,059) (757) (250)

Total Savings and Income Proposals (5,943) (1,885) 1,645

P
age 13



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 8

Addressing the gap 2019/20

Summary of Budget Proposals

2019/20

£’000

Budget Gap (Draft) Oct 18 2,363

Increase Tax Base growth by further 0.5% (to 1.5%) (491)

Additional release of accumulated Council Tax Surplus (200)

New Homes Bonus (255)

Housing Benefit Overpayments recovery (one off) (400)

Additional Income from Investment Property (214)

Total Changes (1,560)

Revised Budget Gap (Nov 18) 803

P
age 14



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 

To be met from:-

Ø Further increase to tax base – current assumption 1% but potential 
to rise to 1.5% = £491k)

Ø Additional release from collection fund surplus (one-off) £200k

Ø New Homes Bonus – likely to be one-off benefit - £255k (depends 
on level of threshold)

Ø Recovery of Housing Benefit Overpayments – potential one off 
benefit £400k

Ø Additional income from our Investment Strategy

Ø Any additional savings measures

Further Considerations:-

Ø Update inflation assumptions

Ø Implications of expenditure pressures and delivery of savings 
programme from 2018/19 

9

Remaining Gap

P
age 15



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 1 0

P
age 16



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 1 1

P
age 17



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 1 2

P
age 18



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 1 3

P
age 19



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 1 4

P
age 20



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 

Strategic Investment 

Portfolio
Investment Type

Investment 

Price

£m

Average 

Annual ROI*

Net 

Additional 

Income

2017/18

£'000

Net 

Additional 

Income

2018/19

£'000

Net 

Additional 

Income

2019/20

£'000

Net 

Additional 

Income

2020/21

£'000

Sonovo House Property 12.2 0.7% 134.3 37.5 37.1 37.0

DSG Preston Property 17.4 2.6% 169.1 273.6 273.6 423.8

Grafton Centre Property 10.8 1.3% 37.1 66.5 86.1 86.1

No1 One Trafford Debt 0.9 0.0% 0.0 869.6 0.0 0.0

City Centre Housing Dev Debt 60.8 2.7% 0.0 372.7 1,644.1 1,860.2

Portfolio Total 102.1 1.8% 340.4 1,619.9 2,040.9 2,407.0

Sale Magistrates Court

Regeneration

(direct investment) 4.3 0.0% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Brown Street, Hale

Regeneration

(direct investment) 6.2 0.0% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

K-Site, Old Trafford

Regeneration

(direct investment) 12.6 0.0% 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Bruntwood - Ksite

Debt

(supporting regeneration) 12.6 2.9% 0.0 307.4 343.2 343.6
*Average ROI based on 10 year period for property acquisitions

Average ROI for debt investments is an annualisation of total investment return

1 5

Investment Fund

P
age 21



Scrutiny Committee Briefing 1 6

QUESTIONS?

P
age 22



  

TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Report to: Executive 
Date: 15 October 2018 
Report for:  Decision 
Report of:  Executive Member for Finance and the Corporate 

Director of Finance and Systems 
Report Title 
 

 
Executive’s Draft Revenue Budget Proposals 2019/20 & MTFS 2020-22 
 

 
Summary  
 

 
This report sets out the Executive’s updated 3 year budget strategy proposals and 
draft revenue budget proposals for 2019/20 and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) for the period 2020-22.   
 
The key summary of figures for the revenue budget, based on current estimates are: 
 

 The draft overall budget movement for 2019/20 is an increase in the net budget of 
£407k or 0.25%, from £164.25 million to £164.65 million.  

 

 The budget funding gap for the three years before applying any of these draft 
budget proposals is currently estimated to be £41.37 million comprising: 

o £29.30 million of budget pressures  
o £12.07 million of funding pressures 

 

 This report presents a draft set of budget proposals to balance the planned budget 
in 2019/20, which in line with our three year strategy, contribute towards closing 
this budget gap by £16.03 million via a mixture of measures: 

o Additional funding and income generation  
o New savings proposals 

 

 These proposals will now form the basis of consultation with members of staff 
and, where required, the general public and are therefore subject to change; the 
draft proposals are also subject to review by the Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 It should be noted that if all the budget proposals in this report are implemented 
there currently still remains a residual budget gap of £25.35 million, comprising: 

o £2.36 million in 2019/20, 
o £10.38 million in 2020/21, and 
o £12.61 million in 2021/22 

 
Final decisions will be taken by the Executive after taking into consideration further 
proposals to address the gap, all relevant matters and feedback, at which time a 
proposed budget will be put to full Council for approval on 20 February 2019. 

Agenda 
Item  

Page 23



  

 

Recommendation(s) 
 

It is recommended that the Executive: 
 

a) Approve the 2019/20 to 2021/22 proposed budget strategy, draft revenue 
budget and MTFS including the income and savings proposals for the purposes 
of consultation only (where necessary) and that these proposals will also be 
referred to the Scrutiny Committee for their consideration. 

 
b) Notes the proposal to increase Council Tax by 3.99% in 2019/20 (comprising 

1% adult social care precept and 2.99% general increase) and by 2.99% for 
2020/21 and 2021/22. 
 

c) Notes the remaining budget gap for the years 2019/20 to 2021/22 
 

d) Notes that the draft proposals are subject to various consultation exercises, 
analysis and impact assessments, movements in core funding, specific grants, 
costing and robustness assessments. 
 

e) Approve and adopt the Asset Investment Strategy included at Annex F. 
 

f) Agrees that the decisions are to be deemed urgent for the reasons set out in 
the report, and thus not subject to call-in. 

 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:   Cllr Mike Cordingley  Nikki Bishop 
Extension:                              4238 
 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 
 

Value for Money. 
The proposed draft budget for 2019/20 supports 
all key priorities and policies. 

Financial  The report sets out the proposed draft budget for 
2019/20 

Legal Implications: It is a statutory requirement for the Council to set 
and approve a balanced, robust budget and 
Council Tax level. 
Budget proposals take account of various 
legislative changes as they affect Council 
services. 
Where appropriate the Council will carry out 
consultation in relation to specific proposals within 
the budget. All proposals will also be assessed in 
line with the Council’s Public Sector Equality Duty. 
Where any budget proposal has the potential to 
affect staff there will be a requirement to consult 
separately internally through routine staff 

Page 24



  

consultation arrangements. 

If the budget for a directorate is to be exceeded, 
which will result in a call on reserves, the 
Executive will need to identify the impact on 
reserves and when they will be replenished.  

Equality/Diversity Implications Equality Impact Assessment to be carried out 
supporting the budget proposals as appropriate. 

Sustainability Implications None arising out of this report. 

Resource Implications e.g. Staffing 
/ ICT / Assets 

Human Resources – statutory processes have 
begun and any impact on staffing will be subject to 
consultation. 

Risk Management Implications   The risks associated with each budget proposal to 
be carried out. 

Health and Wellbeing Implications Equality Impact Assessment to be carried out 
supporting the budget proposals as appropriate. 

Health and Safety Implications An impact assessment of each budget proposal to 
be carried out. 

 
Other Options 
The budget proposals included in this report assume an overall increase to the level 
of council tax of 3.99% in 2019/20 comprising an increase of 1% for the ‘adult social 
care precept’ to be earmarked for adult social care expenditure and 2.99% general 
increase in the ‘relevant basic amount’. 
 
An alternative option could be made to increase its ‘relevant basic amount of council 
tax’ above these levels, however this would exceed the referendum limits, which 
would mean a local referendum was required. 
 
Alternatively not increasing council tax by the level recommended in this report, 
subject to the final referendum level being notified in December, would increase the 
overall funding gap by up to £3.79m in 2019/20 which would mean further reductions 
to expenditure on council services were necessary. 
 
Consultation 
The report recommends that the draft and indicative proposals go forward for 
consultation (where necessary). 
 
Reasons for Recommendation 
To enable consultation with the public, businesses (s65 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992), stakeholders, staff and Scrutiny Committee to take place 
 
Key Decision    
This is a key decision currently on the Forward Plan:   No  
 
Finance Officer Clearance ……GB………….. 
 
Legal Officer Clearance  ……JLF….……… 
 
 

Page 25



  

CORPORATE DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURE  
 
 
………………………………………………… 
To confirm that the Financial and Legal Implications have been considered and the 
Executive Member has cleared the report. 
 

Page 26



  

 
 

 
 

 

Executive’s 
Draft Revenue Budget 
Proposals 2019/20 & 

2020-22 Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 

 
15 October 2018 

 

Page 27



  

 

CONTENTS 

 

  Pages 

 Foreword by the Executive Member for Finance 6 

 Section  
1 Financial Background 11 
2 2018/19 Base Budget & Monitoring Position as at Period 4 

(July 18) 
13 

3 Budget Process  17 
4 Budget Updates & Proposals 18 
5 Robustness, Risks & Reserves 23 
6 Transformation Funding Update 28 
7 Schools Funding & Budgets  31 
8 Capital and Investment Strategy 35 
   

 Annexes  
A 
B 

Base Budget Assumptions 
Subjective Analysis of the Funding Gap 2019/22 

43 
44 

C 100% Business Rates Retention GM Pilot 45 
D Income & Savings Proposals 46 
E 2018/19 Subjective (Spend) Budget Analysis 49 
F Asset Investment Strategy 50 
   

Page 28



  

FOREWORD by the EXECUTIVE MEMBER for FINANCE 
COUNCILLOR MIKE CORDINGLEY 

I am pleased to present the Council’s draft budget report for the period 2019/20 to 
2021/22 which sets out our spending priorities across the revenue budget, capital 
programme and the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) budgets. 2019/20 will be the 
tenth consecutive year that the Council has been challenged with having to set a 
budget faced with continuing reductions in funding. Over this period this has meant 
savings to council services of £138m have had to be made; this inevitably poses a 
strain on continuing to deliver the services that our community deserves.   

In recent months the plight of local government finances has come under great 
attention as a number of local authorities struggle to cope and in some cases have 
shifted to a core service offer, barely above a statutory minimum. Trafford is already 
a low spend authority and therefore has limited flexibility available to address further 
cuts in funding. Our population is projected to increase by around 11% to 260,000 
over the next twenty years, a slightly higher rate of increase than the national 
projection of 10%. Reflecting the national trend, the highest rates of population 
growth will be seen within the older age groups. The number of people aged 65 and 
over is projected to increase by 41%, whilst those aged 85 and over will increase by 
55% bringing even greater challenges to the health and social care system. This 
coupled with a growth in the level of children in care or with special educational 
needs, places a great strain on this area of the budget which accounts for over half 
of our net expenditure. 

Over the next few years there will be a number of issues which will have a direct and 
significant impact on the budget. The national Spending Review next spring will 
signal the expected levels of resources to be available to local government over the 
next three years and the promised green paper on the future of social care should 
offer some solutions for our social care services and how they can be afforded in the 
future.  

2020/21 will see two major changes; the implementation of the Fair Funding Review 
which will be used to distribute resources across local government nationally and a 
reset of the business rate retention scheme. Both these changes are likely to impact 
on the level of resources we have to support our services. 

Over the summer the Executive and Corporate Leadership Team have held a 
number of workshops to firstly take stock of the overall budget position, the 
assumptions underpinning the financial forecasts and the extent of the funding gap 
over the next three years and then to develop proposals to address that gap. 

Since the 2018/19 budget was approved by Council on the 21st February 2018 there 
have been a number of budget changes, with the overall gross budget gap for the 
next three years standing at £41.37m, before the inclusion of previously proposed 
savings and policy choice funding increases. 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



  

 Budget Movements 
2019/20 

£'000 
2020/21 

£'000 
2021/22 

£'000 
Total 
£’000 

Budget Gap after Feb 18 Savings and 
Policy Choice Funding Proposals 

6,250 8,845 0 15,095 

Reverse Adult Social Care Precept 
increase 1% (Feb 18) 

950 0 0 950 

Reverse 1.99% General Increase in basic 
Council Tax 

1,890 1,956 0 3,846 

Reverse Prior year Savings & Income 
programmes (Feb 18) 

1,516 (1,672) 0 (156) 

Gross Budget Gap before Feb 18 
Savings and Policy Choice Funding 
Proposals 

10,606 9,129 0 19,735 

Budget Updates at Draft (Oct 18)     

Changes to Budget Assumptions 3,478 4,155 8,547 16,180 

Changes to Funding (1,989) 9,249 (1,803) 5,457 

Revised Gross Budget Gap (Oct 18) 12,095 22,533 6,744 41,372 

 
The 2019/20 revised gross budget gap is currently estimated at £12.10 million, at the 
draft budget stage, this has been partially met from a combination of the following: 
 
• Policy Choice Funding Increases amounting to £3.79 million, comprising  

 Continuation of the previously proposed increase in Adult Social Care Precept 
of 1% to generate £0.95 million 

 Increase in the basic rate of Council Tax of 2.99%, generating £2.84m 

• Income generation and savings amounting to £5.94 million, comprising:- 

 Income Generation of £2.88 million : 

 Service Delivery Savings of £3.06 million: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



  

Summary of meeting the  
Revised Budget Gap 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revised Gross Budget Gap (Oct 18) 12,095 22,533 6,744 41,372 

Policy Choice Funding Proposals     

Reinstate Adult Social Care Precept 
increase 1% 

(950) 0 0 (950) 

General Increase in basic Council Tax 
to 2.99% (subject to referendum level) 

(2,839) (2,973) (3,080) (8,892) 

Contribution from Budget Support/ 
Business Rate Smoothing Reserves 

0 (7,300) 7,300 0 

Total Policy Choice Funding (3,789) (10,273) 4,220 (9,842) 

Savings and Income proposals  (5,943) (1,885) 1,645 (6,183) 

Revised Budget Gap (Oct 18) 2,363 10,375 12,609 25,347 

 
This leaves a balance of savings still to be identified of £2.36 million before the 
budget for 2019/20 can be balanced and priority will be given to doing this before 
final budget proposals are presented to Council for approval in February 2019.  

It is expected that the remaining budget gap will be addressed, in part, by additional 
net income to be generated from the Investment Strategy. To date total investments, 
including commitments, of approximately £136m have been made on the outright 
acquisition of three income generating investment assets, a commitment to support a 
local development by way of the provision of senior debt and proposals for the direct 
development of a number of sites in the borough. These initiatives are already 
delivering crucial additional revenue that is being used to support our budget plans 
and maintain public services. The capital programme includes a total budget of 
£300m for the Investment Fund, supported by prudential borrowing therefore if 
suitable opportunities can be identified within the remaining budget then this will 
allow the budget gap to be addressed. In order to provide additional headroom, it is 
recommended to increase the Investment Fund to £400m in 2019/20. 
 
The capital programme is still under review and firm proposals for 2019/22 will be 
brought back to Executive in February 2019.  
 
In July a report was presented to Executive which looked to address the budget gap 
on the High Needs block of the DSG. Whilst this was achieved for 2018/19 the 
pressures on the special education needs budget continues and there remains a 
budget gap over the period 2019/20 to 2021/22 of £2.1m, of which £1.4m is in 
2019/20. Proposals to address this gap exist and are currently being considered, but 
given the nature of the services provided, the client groups affected and potential 
impact on individual schools it is unlikely that measures will be sufficiently developed 
to allow adequate consultation for 2019/20. Therefore it is proposed to seek 
agreement of the funding to a further top-slice of the schools block with the balance 
met from council reserves.   
 
We promised to review the charge introduced during 2017/18 for the collection of 
green waste. Removing the charge will have the following impact on the budget:- 

Page 31



  

 
 Reduction in net income £1.45m 
 Impact on waste levy £350k. 

 
As long as the budget gap can be addressed for 2019/20 we will endeavour to 
remove the charge by considering alternative income generation and savings 
measures. 
 
With a budget gap for the following two years of £22.99 million, the size of the 
challenge remains significant. For that reason budget proposals will continually be 
developed, so that sufficient time is afforded to consider all budget options at an 
early stage. 
 

Councillor Mike Cordingley 
 
 

 

Executive Member for Finance 

Page 32



  

1. FINANCIAL BACKGROUND 

1.1 Background 

1.1.1 Since 2010 the Government has reduced the funding for Local Government 
as part of its efforts to reduce the fiscal deficit. This equates to a 28.6% real 
terms reduction in an authority’s spending power, taking into account council 
tax.  

1.1.2 Alongside reductions in funding, local authorities have had to deal with growth 
in demand for key services, most notably adult’s and children’s social care; 
this demand is expected to continue. Other pressures have also been faced 
including higher national insurance contributions, inflationary pressures on 
goods and services, the apprentice levy and the National Living Wage.  

1.1.3 In recent years Government has provided some extra funding for social care 
by way of specific grant and combined with the introduction of the adult social 
care precept this has meant that the rates of reduction to overall funding have 
levelled since 2016/17 and will remain relatively flat until 2019/20.  

1.1.4 This has meant that by 2019/20 the total value of funding gaps caused by the 
expenditure pressures and funding reductions since 2010/11 is £197.8m, of 
which £12.1m relates to 2019/20. 

1.1.5 The overall funding gap over the next three financial years is £41.4m. 

 

1.2 Local Government Finance Settlement 

1.2.1 The 2019/20 Local Government Finance Settlement is expected to re-confirm 
the funding offered in accepting the four year settlement deal and can be 
found in the table below. This shows a further reduction in Revenue Support 
Grant of £5.00m, which impacts on the level of baseline funding retained by 
the Council (See Annex C). 

Page 33



  

Table 1:  
The Funding Offer 

2016/17 
£'000 

2017/18 
£'000 

2018/19 
£'000 

2019/20 
£'000 

Revenue Support Grant 22,989 15,276 10,303 5,299 

Transitional Grant 465 458 0 0 

Rural Services Delivery Grant 0 0 0 0 

Total 23,454 15,734 10,303 5,299 

 

1.2.2 Fair Funding - The Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG) is currently working on a fair funding review for local government to 
include a complete review of the relative needs and funding required by 
different councils to fund their services. This is in recognition that the current 
methodology is over ten years old and has not been reviewed since 2013/14. 
The new methodology will be effective from 2020/21 and at this stage no 
further reduction in baseline funding after 2019/20 is included in the budget 
assumptions.  

1.2.3 Local Government Finance Settlement Technical Consultation over the 
summer which included a number of proposals for the 2019/20 Settlement. 
This included the intention to confirm the final year of the multi-year 
settlement, potential changes to the baselines used in the calculation of the 
New Homes Bonus and the principles around council tax increases. 
Government is minded to continue the core principles around council tax 
referendums as agreed for 2018/19, ie up to 3% for unitary authorities and a 
continuation of the Adult Social Care precept, with an additional 2% flexibility 
for unitary authorities. This is subject to total increases not exceeding 6% 
between 2017/18 and 2019/20. The Council has a remaining flexibility of a 
further 1% in 2019/20 based on the 5% increase over the period 2017/18 and 
2018/19. 

1.3 Business Rates 

1.3.1 In April 2015 Greater Manchester (GM) and Cheshire East joined together as 
a business rate Pool; Cheshire West and Chester later joined the Pool in April 
2016.  

1.3.2 This means that any levy on growth, ordinarily payable to the Government, is 
retained by the Pool and has allowed the retention of a significant level of 
funds in the GM and Cheshire areas. 

1.3.3 In the 2015 spending review and autumn statement the government 
announced plans to completely phase out Revenue Support Grant and pave 
the way for the implementation of 100% business rates retention in 2020/21. 

1.3.4 In February 2017 the 2017/18 Local Government Finance Settlement 
confirmed a number of areas including GM, Liverpool City Region, West 
Midlands, West of England, Cornwall and the GLA will be piloting 100% 
Business Rates Retention from 1st April 2017. MHCLG has recently 

Page 34



  

announced that this pilot status will remain for GM in 2019/20 until the 
introduction of a 75% retention scheme nationally by 2020/21 and will then 
consider the continuation of 100% business rates retention in devolution deal 
area pilots as part of our wider changes to the business rates retention 
system. 

1.3.5 These two initiatives have allowed the Council to benefit quite significantly 
from the scheme for business rate retention above its baseline funding level. 
The total benefit supporting the budget in 2018/19 is £9.89m, of which £4.67m 
is due to participation in the 100% pilot.  

1.3.6 From 2020/21 MHCLG will undertake a full reset of the retention scheme first 
introduced in 2013/14. This will put at risk the majority of the benefit the 
Council currently receives and this potential reduction is factored into these 
projections from 2020. 

1.4 Summary 

1.4.1 The impact of the funding reduction in 2019/20 included in the four year 
settlement has been known. It is highly likely that the impact of the fair funding 
review and business rate reset will have a significant financial impact on the 
council. It is feasible that the council could lose out financially from both areas 
but at this stage the only assumption in these forecasts is for a loss in 
business rate income caused by the reset, albeit the council continues to 
argue that it retains historic growth in business rate revenues where these are 
directly related to Council investment, without which the growth would not 
have occurred.  

1.4.2 The loss of business rate revenue in these forecasts from 2020/21 is 
approximately £10m which is a cautious stance. Given the size of the potential 
loss of funding if this were to arise no further reduction in baseline funding has 
been made. There is also a possibility that MHCLG will allow for a damping 
mechanism which if included would mitigate the impact of any funding 
reduction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



  

2. 2018/19 BUDGET & MONITORING POSITION as at PERIOD 4 (July 18) 

2.1 Budget 2018/19 

2.1.1 The Council’s current gross budget for 2018/19 is £453.57m however this 
includes specific funding of Dedicated Schools Grant and Housing Benefit. 
The Council’s net controllable budget agreed by Council in February 2018 
was £164.2m. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



  

2.2 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2018/19 Period 4 (July 2018) 

2.2.1 Delivery of the 2018/19 budget is critical to ensure that budget forecasting for 
future years can be done on a sound basis. The period 4 (July 2018) revenue 
budget monitoring report forecasts an overspend of £1.958m as follows: 

 

2.2.2 The current in-year variations contain a number of items with those notable 
items listed below which has been considered in determining the budget 
proposals for 2019/20: 

 Children’s Services - continuing rise in demand and the increasing costs of 

Children’s placements. 

 Adult Services - increase in the cost of care reflecting the increased 

number of referrals and complexity of cases and the shrinking bed base. 

 Place – staff vacancies and higher than expected income levels are partly 

offset by an increase in running costs above budget across the service. 

 People – running costs above budget and the one-off impact of a 

management restructure. 

 Finance & Systems – minor variations in savings compared to target 

relating to vacancies and running costs. 

Table 2: Budget Monitoring 
results by Service 

2018/19 
Budget 
(£000’s) 

Forecast 
Outturn 
(£000’s) 

 Forecast 
Variance 
(£000’s) 

Percent-
age 

Children’s Services 32,373 34,333 1,960 6.1% 

Adult Services (Inc. Public Health) 60,062 60,533 471 0.8% 

Place 23,874 23,686 (188) (0.8)% 

People 2,762 2,838 76 2.8% 

Finance & Systems 6,997 6,994 (3) (0.0)% 

Governance & Community 
Strategy 

7,508 7,639 131 1.7% 

Total Directorate Budgets 133,576 136,023 2,447 1.8% 

Council-wide budgets 30,670 30,181 (489) (1.6)% 

Net Service Expenditure 
variance  

164,246 166,204 1,958 1.2% 

Funding     

Business Rates (see para. 14) (67,619) (67,619) -  

Council Tax (see para. 11) (94,497) (94,497) -  

Reserves (1,630) (1,630) -  

Collection Fund surplus (500) (500) -  

Funding variance  (164,246) (164,246) 0 0.0% 

     

Net Revenue Outturn variance 0 1,958 1,958 1.2% 

     

Dedicated Schools Grant 128,036 128,147 111 0.1% 

Public Health  12,178 12,378 200 1.6% 

Page 37



  

 Governance & Community Strategy – running costs above budget and a 

shortfall in income compared to target are partly offset by savings from 

vacancies across the service. 

 Council-wide budgets – additional income from the Investment Strategy 

and a release of some contingency budgets have been partly offset by 

higher than anticipated running costs. 

 

2.2.3 At this stage of the year a cautious view is taken when projecting budgets and 
a prudent level of contingency budget remains to cover the risks associated 
with demand led services, particularly for adults and children’s social care. 
Despite continuing efforts to control expenditure the Council is still seeing an 
increase in the number of children in care and in recognition of these in-year 
pressures a further £500k has been included in the 2019/20 budget 
projections. This position will be considered further before final budget 
proposals are brought back to Executive in February 2019. 

Page 38



  

3. BUDGET PROCESS 2019/20 

3.1 Budget Approach 2019/22 

3.1.1 Members of the Executive and the Corporate Leadership Team have held a 
number of budget workshops over the last few months to review the overall 
budget position. This has included a full review of all assumptions used in 
developing the budget plans, to ensure they are still relevant and up to date, 
and a review of all continuing savings programmes. To bridge the budget gap 
for 2019/20 a number of new savings proposals have been identified and 
business cases developed. Whilst there still remains a small gap in 2019/20 it 
is expected that the maturing Investment Strategy and a further review of 
service savings initiatives will identify further opportunities to close this; albeit 
a further review of all assumptions, including the in-year monitoring position 
will be undertaken before setting the final budget for 2019/20 in February 
2019. 

3.2 Budget & Staff Consultation 

3.2.1 Proposals in this report will require consultation with the public and 
businesses, with the form of consultation to be developed before the end of 
October 2018.  

3.2.2 Details on these draft budget proposals will be made available on the 
Council’s website via the 2019/20 budget pages. 

3.2.3 Where any budget proposal has the potential to affect staff there will be a 
requirement to consult separately internally through routine staff consultation 
arrangements. 

3.3 Scrutiny Review 

3.3.1 A number of Scrutiny reviews will be held during October and November, with 
the first meeting held on 3 October 2018 to review the funding gap in the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and the assumptions 
underpinning the overall gap. 

3.3.2 On the 7 November 2018 the Leader of the Council will give a presentation to 
Scrutiny Committee setting out the 2019/20 draft budget proposals contained 
within this report, which will enable Scrutiny members to review the budget 
proposals and feedback any comments in January 2019. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



  

4. BUDGET UPDATES & PROPOSALS 

4.1 This section identifies:- 

 The revised funding gap for 2019/20 and later years. 

 The draft set of budget proposals to partially close the revised funding gap. 

 
4.2 Updated Funding Gap  

4.2.1 The MTFS position reported to Council in February 2018 Budget Report 
showed an overall budget gap for 2019/20 and 2020/21 of £15.095m. If the 
proposed increase in Council Tax and prior year savings programme are 
excluded, this increases the underlying budget gap to a gross figure for 
2019/20 and 2020/21 to £19.74m 

4.2.2 Since February the Medium Term Financial Plan has been updated to include 
the financial year 2021/22, along with changes to cost pressures and non-
policy choice funding for 2019/20 and 2020/21. These changes have resulted 
in the budget gap over the next three years increasing from £19.74 million to 
£41.37 million and the table below summarises these budget movements with 
a full subjective breakdown provided in Annex B. 

Table 3:  
Budget Movements 

2019/20 
(£'000) 

2020/21 
(£'000) 

2021/22 
(£'000) 

Total 
(£'000) 

NET BUDGET GAP (Budget Feb 18) 6,250 8,845 0 15,095 

Reverse Adult Social Care Precept 
increase 1% 

950 0 0 950 

Reverse 1.99% General Increase in basic 
Council Tax 

1,890 1,956 0 3,846 

Reverse Prior year Savings & Income 
programmes (Feb 18) 

1,516 (1,672) 0 (156) 

Gross Budget Gap before Feb 18 
Savings and Policy Choice Funding 
Proposals 

10,606 9,129 0 19,735 

Movements in Budget Assumptions :     

Impact of loss of Transformation Funding 0 3,257 0 3,257 

Pay Award +1% to 2% (previously 
assumed 1%) 

0 730 1,671 2,401 

Demographic Pressures Children's 
Services 

500 500 2,500 3,500 

Changes to Waste Levy Assumptions and 
Mandatory Recycling 

203 152 507 862 

TTH contribution to lifecycle replacement 116 0 0 116 

Contractual Obligations and Inflation 281 199 2,227 2,707 

Living Wage assumptions and re-phasing 200 (74) 1,572 1,698 

Release of Council Tax Surplus to Budget 
Support Reserve 

600 (600) 0 0 

Additional cost of new pay structure 345 0 0 345 

Waterside Arts Centre 100 0 0 100 

Page 40



  

Housing Benefit Overpayment Recovery 
(17/18 saving ending) 

300 0 0 300 

0.5% Pension saving assumed to stop in 
19/20 

350 0 0 350 

Other changes in Budget Assumptions 483 (9) 70 544 

Movements in Budget Assumptions 3,478 4,155 8,547 16,180 

Movements in Funding :        

Additional Business Rates Growth 17/18 
Released in 19/20 

(1,181) 1,181 0 0 

Increase in Council Tax Base (number of 
properties) 

0 0 (501) (501) 

Increase in growth in Council Tax Base to 
1% (previously 0.5%) 

(491) (527) (571) (1,589) 

Release of Prior Year Council Tax Surplus (600) 600 0 0 

Changes in Bus Rate Assumptions 
(including Reset) 

283 7,995 (731) 7,547 

Movements in Funding (1,989) 9,249 (1,803) 5,457 

TOTAL BUDGET MOVEMENTS 1,489 13,404 6,744 21,637 

REVISED BUDGET GAP (Oct 18) 12,095 22,533 6,744 41,372 

ACCUMULATIVE BUDGET GAP (Oct 18) 12,095 34,628 41,372  

 

4.3 Budget Assumptions and Funding 

4.3.1 Budget pressures : £29.3 million 

An overall increase in cost pressures of £29.3m over the next three years, the 
main features are detailed below with a summary of the base budget 
assumptions shown in Annex A: 

 Pay: includes a core provision for a 2% pay award, with some lower 
grades receiving up to 7.3% in 2019/20. An impact of £5.23m over three 
years. 

 Living Wage: an allowance of £5.07m over the next three years has been 
provided, which covers projected increases in pay, for external care staff, 
up to the target National Living Wage of £9 per hour by 2020. 

 Inflation: relates to non-staffing budgets and includes a general allowance 
of 2%; plus other contractual inflation totalling £6.79m over the next three 
years. 

 Levies: includes allowances for waste disposal, transport and Environment 
Agency (flood defence).  

 Demography: an annual budget increase to reflect the increasing number 
of adults & children requiring social care of £7.5m over the next three 
years. 

Page 41



  

 New Income: including an allowance of £(2.66) million for the Council’s 
share of the additional funding of £1.5bn the Government is providing for 
the improved Better Care Fund.  

 Expected Grant Reductions: expected reduction in New Homes Bonus 
£267k to four year allocations and a reduction in the DSG recharge £200k. 

 Treasury Management: includes investment interest and borrowing costs, 
a reduction of £1.12m over three years, represents an increase in 
investment income in line with projected increases in investment rates and 
savings in maturing debt costs. 

 Other: totalling £5.98m over three years, includes cost pressures of 
£3.26m in 2020/21 after the loss of transformation funding and also 
reversals in 2019/20 of prior year savings which were either one off in 
nature or coming to an end. These include the refund of AGMA 
overpayments £413k, early retirement savings on pension payments 
£350k, the savings benefit from the advanced pension payment £757k, 
Housing Benefit overpayment recovery £300k, and allowances for other 
minor service pressures and contingency items. 

4.3.2 Funding Pressures : £12.08 million 

Using the 2018/19 funding of £164.25 million as the baseline, this is estimated 
to reduce to £152.17m over the next three years, resulting in a funding 
pressure of £12.08 million. The main feature being the reset of the Business 
Rates Growth Pilot in 2020/21 which is being partially offset through an 
increase in the Council Tax base as detailed below: 

 Council Tax: a 1% allowance per annum for the estimated growth in the 
number of properties, increasing the Council Tax base in each of the next 
three years. This will generate approximately £0.95m per annum 

 Council Tax release of prior years’ accumulated surplus will contribute an 
additional £0.9m on a one off basis in 2019/20 of which £0.6m will be 
transferred to the budget support reserve to support future years’ budgets.  

 In 2018/19, there was a one off contribution from the budget support 
reserve. Its removal creates an ongoing funding pressure of £1.63 million. 

 Business Rates: The total estimated reduction in Business Rates over 
three years is estimated at £13.0m, largely as a result of the reset of the 
growth pilot of £11.9 million, loss of the Revenue Support Grant 
component of the Baseline Funding Level of £5.0 million, offset by £3.9 
million of inflation indexation. Full details of which are shown in Annex C 
with a summary in the table below.  

 

 

Page 42



  

Table 4:  
Benefit from Business Rates 

2018/19 
100% PILOT 

£000 

2019/20 
100% PILOT 

£000 

2020/21 
100% PILOT 

£000 

2021/22 
100% PILOT 

£000 

Core Baseline Funding  35,031         35,732      36,447      37,176 

Revenue Support Grant 10,303         5,299              5,299           5,299 

Public Health Grant 12,391         12,065            12,065         12,065 

Total Baseline Funding Level (BFL) 57,725 53,096 53,811 54,540 

Business Rates Benefit of 100% Pilot 9,895 12,005 84 86 

Total Benefit from Business Rates 67,620 65,101 53,895 54,625 

Yearly Change      

Change in BFL  (4,629) 715 729 

Change in Business Rates Benefit  2,110 (11,921) 2 

Yearly Change  (2,519) (11,206) 731 

 

4.4 Closing The Revised Budget Gap 

4.4.1 The table below shows the draft budget position following the latest round of 
budget proposals and policy choice funding updates. A full detailed listing of 
savings and income proposals can be found in Annex D. 

Table 5:  
Summary of the Budget 
Proposals 

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 Total 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Revised Gross Budget Gap (Oct 
18) 

12,095 22,533 6,744 41,372 

Policy Choice Funding Proposals     

Reinstate Adult Social Care Precept 
increase 1% 

(950) 0 0 (950) 

General Increase in basic Council 
Tax to 2.99%  

(2,839) (2,973) (3,080) (8,892) 

Contribution from Budget Support/ 
Business Rate Smoothing Reserves 

0 (7,300) 7,300 0 

Total Policy Choice Funding (3,789) (10,273) 4,220 (9,842) 

Savings and Income proposals * (5,943) (1,885) 1,645 (6,183) 

Revised Budget Gap (Oct 18) 2,363 10,375 12,609 25,347 

 * The Savings and Income proposals include those brought forward from 
February 2018 adjusted to reflect latest estimates.  Full details of all Savings 
and Income proposals are shown in Annex D.  

 

 

 

 

Page 43



  

4.4.2 New Income Proposals (October 2018): 

The latest round of budget proposals generated additional income proposals 
of £3.13m for 2019/20, to include those listed below, with a full detailed listing 
provided in Annex D:  

 £1.50 additional income from the Property Investment Strategy. 

 £1.5m from an increase in the dividend from our shareholding in the 
Manchester Airport Group (MAG). 

 £47k from a review of charges for environmental health services, licensing 
and building control. 

 £84k income from a review of car parking charges 

 

4.4.3 New Savings Proposals (October 2018): 

The latest round of budget proposals generated new savings proposals of 
£2.85m in 2019/20, to include those listed below, with a full detailed listing 
provided in Annex D:  

 £371k from a reduction in the use of external children’s home use 

 £202k from the creation of new Post 16 accommodation 

 £560k from adult’s programmes, Let’s Talk Model and Right Care for You 

 £30k from a review of legal costs 

 £100k (one off) from use of a smoothing reserves 

 £50k reduction in insurance costs 

 £218k by removing the General Inflation provision  

 £600k reduction in the General Contingency budget 

 £200k by restructuring our debt 

 £517k of other efficiency and policy choice savings  

4.4.4 Additional Funding (October 2018): 

Council Tax: although the referendum principles and the deemed ‘excessive’ 
amount are unknown until the final Local Government Finance Settlement, the 
Council propose to increase the level of Council Tax in 2019/20 by:  

 2.99% general increase in the ‘relevant basic amount’ 

 1% adult social care precept 

This assumes the Government will continue to allow Local Authorities to 
increase their Council Tax by less than 3% without the need to hold a 
referendum i.e. allow a 2.99% general increase in the ‘relevant basic amount’. 

 

4.4.5 In summary, there are £5.94m of new income and savings proposals 
(including the impact of continuing programmes from 2018/19). 

4.4.6 Based on current assumptions and proposals the 2019/20 net budget will 
increase by £407k or 0.25%, from £164.25m to £164.65m. 

Page 44



  

4.4.7 A full subjective summary providing a breakdown of the 2019/20 net budget 
can be found in Annex E. 

Table 6:  
The 2019-22 Budget October 2018 

Budget 
2019/20 
(£'000) 

2020/21 
(£'000) 

2021/22 
(£'000) 

Service:       

Children’s Services 33,567 35,324 37,081 

Adult Services (incl. Public Health) 60,923 68,399 72,618 

Place 32,860 34,342 35,907 

Central Services (*) 17,691 18,585 19,495 

Total Service Budgets 145,041 156,650 165,101 

      

Council-wide Budgets 21,974 20,520 22,261 

Net Budget 167,015 177,170 187,362 

Funding:       

Council Tax (100,149) (103,238) (107,390) 

Business Rates: Local Share (147,366) (150,312) (153,319) 

Business Rates: Tariff Payment 94,270 96,502 98,780 

Business Rates: Assumptions, Growth, 
S31 Grants, GM Pilot 

(12,007) (84) (86) 

Funding (165,252) (157,132) (162,015) 

Movement in Reserves      

Smoothing Reserve 600 (7,300) 0 

Movement to/(from) Reserves 600 (7,300) 0 

Cumulative Budget Gap 2,363 12,738 25,347 

Annual Budget Gap 2,363 10,375 12,609 

(*) Central Services consists of the new Directorate’s of People, Finance and 
Systems and Governance and Community Strategy 

Page 45



  

5. ROBUSTNESS, RISKS & RESERVES 

5.1 Robustness and Risks 

5.1.1 The law requires that the Council sets a balanced and robust budget, which is 
sufficient to meet its legal obligations, and then its aspirations. This requires 
all plans to be costed, forecasts and estimates to be checked for 
reasonableness, and risks to be assessed across the many varied services 
the Council provides. This also includes an assessment for emergencies, 
severe weather and other service and strategic risks. 

5.1.2 Robustness does not guarantee that all possible eventualities are identified, or 
that all budget estimates are exact. Actual income and expenditure is likely to 
vary from the established budgets, but in the round these will compensate, 
and the approved budget need only be sufficient to meet overall expenditure 
requirements. 

5.1.3 In exercising their statutory duty the Corporate Director for Finance and 
Systems, in conjunction with the Corporate Leadership Team, will take all 
matters and issues into consideration and will make a reasoned assessment 
of whether the budget is sufficient and robust. The Executive will ensure the 
minimum reserve level is maintained to ensure the Council can meet its 
obligations. 

5.1.4 The Council faces various financial risks to include: 

 The ability to deliver savings within agreed timescales. 

 Potential legal challenges to decisions. 

 Fees & charges income differing to assumptions. 

 Variations to external funding and grant allocations. 

 Demographic pressures. 

 Inflation & Interest Rates differing to assumptions. 

 Business Rates growth & the 100% retention scheme pilot and potential 
costs with backdated appeal costs. 

 Variations to external levies & contracts. 

 Future changes to legislation and risk from Brexit 

 Devolution & integration of Health & Social Care (also an opportunity) 

5.2 Reserves 

5.2.1 It is important that the Council has a strategic approach to the creation and 
use of reserves and it is therefore considered prudent and timely to assess 
the optimum levels of reserves required by the Council in light of the current 
Medium Term Financial Plan, whether the current arrangements for their use 
are working well and whether alternative arrangements could result in the 
better use of resources, more effective investments and improved financial 
management. 

Page 46



  

5.2.2 Reserves are set aside so that future plans can be afforded or to avoid 
infrequent or emergency expenditure impacting on the ‘normal operational 
budget. It is a legal requirement to set aside provisions, and a minimum level 
of generally available reserve and it is best practice to ensure that there are 
other sufficient reserves available to meet further needs to ensure an 
achievable and sustainable budget. 

5.2.3 The Council usable reserves at 31st March 2018 stood at £75.02m, of which 
£43.23m relates to Earmarked revenue reserves as shown below along with 
their projected usage over the 3 year planning period. 

Table 7:  
Usable 
Reserves 

17/18 
£m 

18/19 
£m 

19/20 
£m 

20/21 
£m 

21/22 
£m 

Specific 6.82  6.06  4.95  4.05  4.01  

Smoothing 8.36  7.14  5.93  4.77  4.77  

Business Rates 
Growth Pilot 

6.69  6.69  6.69  0.00  0.00  

Budget Support 6.58  4.95  5.55  4.95  4.95  

Service C/fwd 4.56  2.70  2.45  2.32  2.32  

Investment Fund 4.96  2.94  0.00  0.00 0.00  

NDR Deficit/Levy 5.26  0.00  0.00  0.00  0.00  

Earmarked 
Reserves 

43.23  30.48  25.57  16.09  16.05  

            

General Reserve 6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  6.00  

Capital Related 
Reserves 

17.48  6.29  5.36  2.14  0.00  

School Related 
Reserves 

8.31  7.61  7.38  7.38  7.38  

Total Usable 
Reserves 

75.02  50.38  44.31  31.61  29.43  

Provisions 42.59  42.59  42.59  42.59  42.59  

Total Usable 
Reserves & 
Provisions 

117.61  92.97  86.90  74.20  72.02  

 

5.2.4 The reserves are categorised into a number of priority areas including a 
general reserve, earmarked reserves and other statutory or specific reserves. 

5.2.5 General Reserve: the Council is required by law to maintain a minimum level 
of reserves to meet unexpected or emergency expenditure, in February 2016 
Council agreed to set the minimum level of the General Fund Reserve at 
£6.00m and maintained this level in February 2017 and 2018. 

5.2.6 Earmarked Reserves: the Council holds other Earmarked reserves to fund 
both revenue and capital expenditure which are held primarily to fund known 

Page 47



  

future commitments but also act as service contingencies for unexpected 
events and to cover future risks, which include: 

Budget Smoothing and Support 

 Budget Support: established in 2015/16 to provide a cushion against 
volatility in budget funding and the significant level of savings required over 
the medium term. 

 Business Rates Growth Pilot: established in 2017/18 to hold the surplus 
funds generated from the 2016/17 and 2017/18 Business Rates Growth 
Pilot. Is designed to cover volatility in the fluctuation of business rates and 
provide a cushion when the business rates system is reset in 2020/21. It is 
intended to draw down £6.69m in 2020/21.   

Directorate 

 Specific: mainly consists of the Insurance Reserve to cover potential future 
claims as a result of past events, the Employment Rationalisation Reserve 
for the costs of severance and related costs of structural change over and 
above the revenue budget provision and Transformation Reserve.  

 Smoothing: established to reduce or smooth out volatility in the revenue 
budget where normal operating expenditure is not always similar year-on-
year, mainly to dampen variations to the Waste Levy. 

 Service Carry Forward: represents accumulated savings on directorate 
budgets in previous years. These amounts are anticipated to be utilised to 
support expenditure on transformational projects. 

Strategic Priority 

 Investment Fund: established in 2016/17 from revising the MRP policy, 
setting aside £9.93m between the years 2016/17 to 2019/20 and this has 
been committed to support future strategic investments which generate 
income returns to support the budget.  

5.2.7 Statutory or Specific purposes only: 

 Capital reserves: consist of capital receipts, grants and contributions which 
can only be used to fund capital expenditure and are all allocated to 
support the current capital programme 

 Schools reserves: represent the carry forward balances of individual school 
surpluses & deficits 

5.2.8 Balancing the annual budget by drawing on Earmarked reserves may be 
viewed as a legitimate short-term option but it is not prudent for these 
reserves to be deployed to finance recurrent expenditure. Holding these types 
of reserves is primarily to assist in cushioning the effects of financial shocks 
and aids resilience.  

5.2.9 It should be noted that the Council has significantly lower levels of reserves 
than its neighbours and therefore any decision around the use of Earmarked 
reserves to support its budget decisions cannot be taken lightly.  

Page 48



  

5.2.10 The level of Earmarked reserves the Council holds is in part reflective of the 
past funding levels of the council in comparison to its need to spend. This 
means that, as the lowest funded Council in Greater Manchester, it has 
accumulated one of the lowest levels of Earmarked reserves. 

5.2.11 Although Trafford’s positioning  did change in 2016-17 with Earmarked 
reserves increasing by c.£10m, with the exception of the Investment Fund, 
this will mainly be required to cover the Council’s share of the Business Rates 
deficit due to be recouped in 2018-19, as a result of the higher than 
anticipated appeals requirement.  

 

Data source: National Statistics: Local authority revenue expenditure and financing England: 
2017 to 2018 individual local authority data - outturn: Revenue Outturn (RO) 2017-18 

Page 49

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/local-authority-revenue-expenditure-and-financing-england-2016-to-2017-individual-local-authority-data-outturn


  

6. TRANSFORMATION FUNDING 

6.1 Background 
 
6.1.1 The Trafford locality was awarded £22m in October 2017 from the Greater 

Manchester (GM) £450m Transformation Fund delegated to Greater 
Manchester Heath & Social Care Partnership (GMHSCP) by NHS England. 

6.1.2 This was to help secure a sustainable health and social care economy by 
2021, in order to build a strong foundation for delivery of Trafford’s vision for 
2031. The investment aims to put in place:- 

 An integrated organisation for Trafford Council and NHS Trafford Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG)  

 A new model of care for community health, primary care and social care 
services, to underpin Trafford’s Local Care Alliance (LCA) which will also 
be established, designed and developed  

 An optimised offer from the Trafford Co-ordination Centre (TCC)  

 Care Complex which will provide coordinated care for people who are at 
risk of developing conditions, or exacerbating existing conditions, and allow 
us to proactively manage them in intermediate care facilitating their 
onwards journey home.  

 A range of enabling activity e.g. workforce development, estates redesign, 
communications and engagement.  

6.1.3 This work will support all Trafford’s residents and GP registered population, 
with interventions specifically targeting those people in the borough with 
poorer health outcomes and the inequalities and performance issues that 
need to be tackled.  

6.1.4 The £22m is pump priming money which is predicated on the basis that 
benefits will be achieved over this time period, which can then be reinvested 
to fund expenditure both within that time period and beyond.  The benefits are 
also expected to exceed on going expenditure and therefore contribute 
towards reducing the overall gap in funding envisaged by the Trafford locality. 

6.1.5 In addition to pump priming monies the Council and the CCG also agreed to 
provide £10.6m of match funding giving an overall fund value of £32.6m.  

6.1.6 Over the four years of the fund, costs are estimated to be £52m funded from 
GMHSCP (£22m), match funding (£10.6m) and associated benefits (£19.4m).   

6.1.7 The table below sets out at a high level how the expenditure of £52m and 
associated benefits are split between the Council and the CCG. 

 

 

Page 50



  

6.1.8 The schemes within the Council are as follows:- 

 Evidence based operating model(s) 

An agreed overarching model will be employed to add empowerment and 
consistency across social care. The new operating model will be co-designed 
with partners in line with Edge of Care, the Stronger Families model and asset 
based approach.   

 Asset Based Assessment & Support based on the Let’s Talk model 

Trafford has been establishing the Asset Based Community Development 
(ABCD) model through partner wide training since 2015. Aligned to this is the 
‘One Trafford Response’ place based proof of concept which is testing the key 
worker approach ahead of wider roll out within the neighbourhood model. 
Another proof of concept of asset based delivery is the ‘Let’s Talk’ programme 
in adult social care. Both models are based on the premise of staff ‘doing the 
right thing’ for service users rather than be driven by the assessment process.  

 Early Help Provision Review 

A wholescale review of commissioned prevention and early help provision is 
being undertaken alongside mapping of non-commissioned provision and an 
analysis of need across the all age continuum.  

 Wholescale caseload reviews and reassessments in adult and children’s 
social care 

Adult social care cases have been going through a process of reassessment 
since the eligibility policy was revised in 2014. It is expected that this work will 
conclude in 2019 but needs to have a greater focus on Learning Disability 
clients, particularly those living in our commissioned supported living 
placements.  

In order to ensure the 1,500 children receiving social care support are in the 
most appropriate threshold for their circumstances and needs, a dedicated 
review team will be employed to undertake case reviews of all children, 
focusing on Looked After Children placements in the first instance. 

 Implementation of a ‘Risk Based Reassessment’ approach 

New software will be implemented in adult social care to identify cases which 
can be reassessed using a more proportionate method against their known 
risk factors; this will lead to a more efficient approach for both social worker 
and service user. This will form part of the system wide identification and 
assessment of people at risk and may be supported in future by TCC. 

 Supported Living Review 

A review of all commissioned supported living provision across Trafford will be 
undertaken to ensure appropriate provision is available against need and 
services are value for money.  

 

 Care Closer to Home Service Remodelling 

This aspect of the programme will redesign a range of services which 
currently support adults following hospital discharge or work to prevent 

Page 51



  

admission following a health crisis.   The services will be redesigned to ensure 
pathways and interventions have the greatest benefit.  In addition, the home 
care market will be reviewed.  

6.1.9 The above schemes should secure savings of £7m by the end of 2018/19 and 
these will continue into 2019/20 looking to secure a further £0.7m linked to the 
saving proposals put forward by the Children and Adults Directorates within 
this report. 

 

Page 52



  

7. SCHOOLS FUNDING & BUDGETS 2019/20 

7.1 Background 

7.1.1 Schools are funded from ring-fenced grants, the most notable of which is the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). This funding cannot be used for any other 
Council function, and essentially schools operate within their own fund with 
any under or over expenditures being taken forward into future years.  The 
DSG can be divided into four main areas: 

 Schools Block (SB) - approximately £159m which essentially funds schools’ 
budgets. This includes £70m for academies. A National Funding Formula 
(NFF) was introduced in 2018/19.  It was intended that there would be a 
‘soft’ formula for 2 years where the NFF is used to set notional budgets for 
each school which will be aggregated to give the total schools block.  After 
being consulted, Trafford schools and Funding Forum opted to use the NFF 
rates from 2018/19 and 2019/20. It was the Government’s intention that a 
‘hard’ formula be introduced in 2020/21, but this has been delayed for at 
least a further year. 

 Central Schools Services Block (CSSB) – £1.5m.  This block reflects the 
ongoing local authority role in education and is reducing year by year.   

 High Needs Block (HNB) – provisional allocation £26m which primarily 
supports Special Educational Needs (SEN) expenditure. This includes 
£12m to fund Trafford Special Schools. 

 Early Years Block (EYB) - approximately £17m, which funds educational, 
provision for 2 to 5 year olds in both LEA Schools and Private, Voluntary 
and Independent (PVI) settings. 

7.1.2 Provisional DSG allocations for 2019/20 have been recently announced and 
whilst a further revision to the 2019/20 figures will be made to reflect pupil 
number changes, at this stage they indicate a £4.06m increase on 2018/19. 

Table 8  
DSG Allocations 

2018/19  
(£m) 

2019/20 
(£m) 

Difference 
(£m) 

Schools Block 155.603 159.203 3.60 

Central School Services Block 1.558 1.521 (0.037) 

High Needs Block 25.029 25.527 0.498 

Early Years Block 16.796 16.796 0 

Total 198.986 203.047 4.061 

 

7.1.3 The increase in the Schools Block represents:- 

 A 1% per pupil increase for each school in 2019/20 through the NFF 
compared to the 2017/18 baseline; 

 The minimum per pupil funding levels have increased to £3,500 for all 
primary schools and £4,800 for all secondary schools that have pupils in 
years 10 and 11; and  

Page 53



  

 The gains cap has increased so that schools can attract gains of up to 
6.09% against their 2017/18 baselines (the minimum per pupil levels are 
not gains capped).     

7.1.4 The increase in the High Needs Block is due to a funding floor which ensures 
all local authorities will attract at least 1% allocation gains compared to 
2017/18 baselines.   

7.1.5 Other grants received by schools include Pupil Premium Grant (PPG) of £5m 
which is intended to bridge the attainment gap for pupils in receipt of free 
school meals and pupils who are or have been in care.  In addition to this 
there is the Universal Infant Free School Meals Grant £3m, 6th Form Funding 
£1.7m and PE and Sports Grant £1.1m. 

7.2 Summary Position 2018/19 

7.2.1 The latest monitoring position reflected in the period 4 budget monitor 
presented to Executive on 17 September 2017 indicated a £111k overspend 
in 2018/19. This is mainly driven by expenditure pressures in the High Needs 
Block (See Para 7.3) which will be funded from the other DSG blocks. The 
projected overspend of £111k will be financed from the central DSG reserve in 
the event the position cannot be brought back into line by the end of the year.  

Table 9  
P4 monitoring 

2018/19 
Budget  

(£m) 

2018/19 
Expected 

Outturn 
(£m) 

 
 

Difference 
(£m) 

Schools Block 155.603 154.771 0.832 

Central School Services Block 1.558 1.487 0.071 

High Needs Block 25.029 26.197 (1.168) 

Early Years Block 16.796 16.642 0.154 

Total 198.986 199.097 (0.111) 

7.2.2 The level of central DSG reserve at 1 April 2018 was £929k and whilst the 
majority is ring-fenced to support specific items of expenditure, the balance 
will be available to support the pressures in the high Needs budget in 
2018/19. 

Table 10  
Analysis of reserves 2018/19 

 
Reserves  

£ 

Reserve as at 31st March 2018 
Schools Block 
Growth Fund 
Primary Targeted 
De-delegation 
Early Years 

928,657 
 

(77,000) 
(60,000) 

(160,378) 
(462,675) 

Available Reserve  164,604 

 

Page 54



  

7.3 High Needs Block (HNB)  

7.3.1 On 23 July 2018 a report was taken to Executive following consultation with 
schools which identified a number of measures to help balance the high 
needs budget in 2018/19. Since 2015/16 the high needs budget has been 
overspent by £1.827m despite various attempts that have been made to 
control expenditure. Whilst the Department for Education has protected 
funding in this area in cash terms, the budget has not been adjusted to 
reflect:- 

 The rising number of children and young people requiring additional 
support. Government figures show there were over 30,000 more children 
in 2017 with statements or Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans than 
in the previous year.  

 Greater local authority responsibilities to support young people with 
SEND, aged between 16 and 25, following the SEND reforms introduced 
through the Children and Families Act 2014. There have been significant 
increases in the number of 16-25 year olds with a statement of SEN or an 
EHC plan since 2014.  

 A trend towards many more children being placed in special schools. 
The number of children in special schools rose by 12.5% between 2014 
and 2017. 

 
7.3.2 In Trafford this has seen an increasing cost of special school places and top-

ups, which increased 6% in 2017/18 and the rising number of children with 
Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCP’s), which lead to additional 
payments from the high needs budgets to the schools those children attend.  
The average cost of EHCP’s went up by 10% in 2017/18 which has caused 
the special education needs budget to overspend by £574k and this trend is 
continuing in the current year.  

7.3.3 The number of referrals for new Education, Health and Care needs 
assessments is rising at an unprecedented rate.  Between January and May 
2017 the number of new referrals was 80; for the same period this year 177 
requests have been received, an increase of 121%.  This demand for 
assessment places additional pressure on schools, education, health and 
social care to undertake substantially more statutory assessments.  

7.3.4 The funding gap in 2018/19 was £1.241m and has been addressed by a 
combination of :  

 0.5% top-slice of the schools block (£778k) as agreed by the Education and 
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) equivalent to £21.62 per pupil;  

 additional savings proposals totalling £248k; and   

 application of reserves £215k. 

7.3.5 The use of reserves and the 0.5% top-slice from the schools block are not 
permanent measures to address the shortfall in 2018/19 and therefore the 
requirement to make recurrent savings to bridge the gap are carried forward 
to later years. 

Page 55



  

7.3.6 A full review of assumptions has been undertaken to identify the funding gap 
over the period 2019/20 to 2021/22. This has identified a gap of £2.1m by 
2021/22, comprising additional expenditure pressures of £2.3m offset by net 
funding increases over the period of £0.2m 

 

7.3.7 The main budget assumptions and their financial impact over the period 
include:- 

 An uplift in complexity of need leading to a rise in special school top-ups 
(No assumption has been made for any further growth in place numbers 
(£0.6m) 

 Continued increase in the level of SEN delegation payments to schools 
(1.0m) 

 Increased costs of home tuition for those pupils unable to attend school 
(£0.3m) 

 Inflationary cost increases on out of borough placements, pay, running 
costs of the additional small specialist class and other small adjustments 
(£0.4m)   

 Additional DSG grant of £1.2m, representing a confirmed increase of 2% in 
2019/20 and estimated increases of 1.5% in 2020/21 and 2021/22, offset 
by the reversal of reserves and one-off funds required to support the 
budget gap in 2018/19 (£1.0m).  

 
 
 

Page 56



  

7.3.8 Detailed consideration has been given on how to bridge the budget gap,  
including:- 

 A further request to top-slice the Schools Block 

 Review of staff costs charged to HN Budgets 

 Expansion of the small specialist class provision 

 Review of SEN Protection Pot  

 Access and Inclusion 

 Review of Top-Ups 

7.3.9 The measures necessary to reduce expenditure any further are likely to need 
substantial modelling and consultation with service users and schools and are 
therefore highly unlikely to be ready for implementation during 2019/20. 
Following a consultation exercise with schools over the summer few proposals 
were received on how to bridge the gap in 2019/20. It is therefore 
recommended to follow the approach taken in 2018/19 and request a further 
top-slice of 0.5% from the schools block for 2019/20. This will be considered 
by the funding forum on 16 October 2018. This is possibly going to be the final 
year this can be requested and will afford time to plan any measures 
effectively to understand the implications on individual schools and service 
users and other aspects of the council’s budget. The top-slice alone is not 
sufficient to meet the budget gap in 2019/20 and therefore the council will look 
to meet the remaining shortfall through a review of contingency budgets, 
rather than have to look to impact on services to vulnerable groups and school 
budgets further. 

Table 11  
Proposal for meeting the budget gap in 2019/20 

  
(£m) 

Budget Gap 1.426 

Proposed 0.5% Schools Block top-slice (0.796) 

Continuing Savings Programmes from 2018/19 (0.058) 

Council Funding (0.572) 

Remaining Gap Nil 

 

7.3.10 In the event the 0.5% top-slice is not approved by funding forum it is possible 
to approach the Education, Skills and Funding Agency for final endorsement 
of the approach and this would be done in November.  

Page 57



  

8. CAPITAL STRATEGY AND PROGRAMME 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
  
8.1 Background  

 
8.1.1 Over the last twelve months significant emphasis has been placed on 

developing a Strategy which will support the Council’s financial resilience over 
the next few years and offer an alternative solution that can be used to 
address future budget gaps. The Investment Strategy is only one element of 
the Council’s budget strategy and service savings and efficiencies will 
continue to be sought in future years but it is expected that generating 
sustainable, low risk revenue streams will play an increasing role given the 
extent of savings already delivered since 2010/11.  

8.1.2 The Council’s Strategy was approved by Executive and Council in July 2017 
when approval was given to increase the capital programme by £300m, 
supported by prudential borrowing, to support the approach. 

8.1.3 It is crucial that in developing an investment strategy appropriate guidance is 
followed and in February 2018 MHCLG Guidance on Local Government 
Investments was issued including that the Strategy:-  

 set out the authority’s policies for prudent management of its investments 
and for giving priority firstly to security of investments and secondly liquidity 
followed by yield. 

 identify the procedures for monitoring, assessing and mitigating risk of loss 
of the invested sums  

 be approved by full Council.  

 

8.1.4 In December 2017 CIPFA issued an update to the Prudential Code which 
included a requirement that local authorities should have a Capital Strategy 
with the purpose of establishing a long term direction for the management and 
use of capital resources for the organisation. It also states that the strategy 
should form part of the authority’s integrated revenue, capital and balance 
sheet planning. 

8.1.5 The requirement for a Capital Strategy is intended to give an overview of how 
capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management activity 
contribute to the provision of services along with an overview of how 
associated risk is managed and the implications for future sustainability. 

8.1.6 The capital strategy should be tailored to the authority’s individual 
circumstances, but should include capital expenditure, investments and 
liabilities and treasury management. It should include sufficient detail to allow 
all members to understand how stewardship, value for money, prudence, 
sustainability and affordability will be secured and to meet legislative 
requirements on reporting.  

 

Page 58



  

8.1.7 The code requires that in compiling the capital strategy an authority should 
have regard to the following key areas :- 

 Capital expenditure  

 Debt and borrowing and treasury management  

 Commercial activity 

 Other long-term liabilities 

 Knowledge and skills. 

  
8.2 Coverage 
 
8.2.1 The Council’s overall approach to investments is included in the Treasury 

Management Strategy and Capital Strategy Reports.  
 

Financial assets - (Included in future Treasury Management Reports)  

 Specified Investments  

 Loans  

 Non specified Investments (ie MAG shares)  

Non-financial investments (See Capital Strategy and Programme 
below)  

 Property, plant and equipment  

 Infrastructure 

 Surplus Property  

 Capital Investment Fund (Commercial Investments)  

CAPITAL STRATEGY AND PROGRAMME 

8.3 Background 

8.3.1 The Capital Strategy and Programme aims to provide a long term vision of the 
Council’s planned capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity and how these can contribute to the provision of services 
through the Capital Programme and the Capital Investment Fund (Commercial 
Properties). The main objectives are:- 

 To maintain and improve key assets used in service delivery, including 
creation of new assets to allow services to be provided in borough where 
appropriate 

 To invest in new technology to improve efficiencies and support 
alternative ways of providing services, including assisting people to 
remain in their own homes 

 To invest in local regeneration schemes that promote economic benefit 
and additional housing, including specific priority to regeneration in Sale 
and Stretford town centres. 

Page 59



  

 To support new infrastructure investment leading to the delivery of both 
economic and housing growth 

 To make strategic investments which will generate net revenue streams to 
support the revenue budget and protect service delivery 

 To undertake direct delivery where this is possible to maximise returns, 
both revenue and capital, to the council 

 
8.4 Capital Programme 2018-21 

 
8.4.1. The Capital Programme is reviewed on a bi-monthly basis and is reported in 

the Budget Monitoring reports to the Executive. The current programme has 
been updated and re-profiled for amounts brought forward from 2017-18, the 
re-phasing of the original 2018-19 programme to later years and new 
programmes and external contributions. As a result of these changes the 
current programme is: 

Table 12:  
Capital Programme 2018-21 

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Service Analysis :         

Children’s Services 13,369 20,821 2,719 36,909 

Adult Social Care  2,343 2,187 2,187 6,717 

Place 62,958 38,430 24,171 125,559 

Governance & Community Strategy 1,976 50 0 2,026 

Finance & Systems 1,926 2,150 0 4,076 

Total Service Programme 82,572 63,638 29,077 175,287 

Capital Investment Fund 255,224 0 0 255,224 

TOTAL PROGRAMME 337,796 63,638 29,077 430,511 

Resource Analysis :         

Capital Grants  16,967 25,101 6,999 49,067 

External contributions 9,929 14,165 500 24,594 

Borrowing 281,828 20,134 15,283 317,245 

Reserves & revenue 11,580 593 0 12,173 

Capital receipts 11,835 4,540 9,036 25,411 

TOTAL RESOURCES 332,139 64,533 31,818 428,490 

The level of over-programming at £2.02m is as agreed in setting the 
programme in February 2018. 

8.4.2. The key priorities in 2018/19 programme are : 

 Investment in schools totalling £12.93m including £7.84m on additional 
school places, £4.41m on maintenance works and £0.68m on Special 
Educational Needs and Healthy Pupil initiatives.  

 £2.78m investment on social care including £2.10m on disabled facilities 
grants aimed at allowing people to remain in their own homes for longer.  

Page 60



  

 Investment in leisure facilities with the redevelopment of Urmston Leisure 
Centre to commence later in the financial year. This is the first phase of a 
series of planned investments in support of the Council’s Leisure Strategy. 

 Highways and transport investment of £21.67m. This includes £12.84m for 
structural works on highways, lighting and bridges, £3.83m investment on 
a range of integrated transport initiatives and £5.00m contribution to the 
Metrolink extension.  

 Investment in commercial activity of £266.50m with £255.22m being 
invested through the Capital Investment Fund and £11.28m with the 
Manchester Airport Group. 

 A range of town centre public realm and regeneration schemes totalling 
£4.63m along with public building repairs programmes of £3.83m and 
parks and greenspace investment of £1.52m.  

 Information communications technology investment of £1.93m. 

8.4.3. In March 2018 the Executive gave approval for an additional £17.0m of 
investment in highways structural maintenance works over the next three 
years.  This includes £5.90m in 2018/19 with further investment of £5.50m 
and £5.60m in 2019/20 and 2020/21 respectively, subject to resource 
availability to be assessed as part of the budget setting process for 2019/20 
and included in the final budget report in February 2019.  

8.4.4. On 30 October 2017 the Executive approved a further strategic investment in 
Manchester Airport Group. The Council’s investment is £11.28m and will be 
fully required in 2018/19; the majority of which will be financed from the 
Investment Fund Reserve of £9.92m, with the balance of £1.36m financed 
from borrowing. This borrowing requirement will be included in the budget 
reports in February 2019. 

8.4.5. When the 2018/21 budget was approved in February 2018 borrowing to 
support leisure centre developments was set at £29.35m (excluding Urmston 
Leisure Centre). The latest estimated costs are currently under review for the 
next phase of the programme, for the replacement of Altrincham and 
Stretford. Business cases for each centre will include proposals for how the 
cost of borrowing will be financed and will be subject of a report to Executive 
in October 2018. Any additional borrowing requirement above that previously 
approved will be referred to in the main budget report in February 2019. The 
future developments of Sale Leisure Centre will be addressed at a later date, 
however it should be highlighted that during the interim period there is 
potential that maintenance works will be required. These works will need to be 
funded from future public building repair budgets. 

8.4.6. The capital programme utilises all known available capital funding sources 
over this period to include prudential borrowing, capital grants and 
contributions and capital receipts. 

8.4.7. The current programme relies on significant levels of land sales receipts for its 
financing. The latest resource estimates, which include a mixture of sales 

Page 61



  

receipts and direct development returns, indicate that across the three year 
period there are sufficient to support the current value of the programme.  

 
8.5 General Capital Programme 2019-22 

8.5.1. Capital Bidding Round  

All service areas have been requested to submit new capital bids for the three 
years from 2019/22. This has included re-bidding for schemes in the current 
2019/21 programme where those schemes are uncommitted along with new 
priorities across 2019/22. A full review of all bids will be undertaken by the 
Corporate Leadership Team and reported to a future Executive. 

8.5.2. Capital Resources Update 2019-22 

A large proportion of the general capital programme is reliant on grants and 
contributions, eg investment in schools and highways and assumptions on 
grant levels have been made for 2021/22.   

As reported in paragraph 8.4.7 there is a heavy reliance on land sales receipts 
and development returns in setting the capital programme. Current levels are 
estimated to be £25.41m which along with approved borrowing of £9.00m in 
support of the general programme gives discretionary internally generated 
resources of £34.41m. The current level of internal funding required to support 
the programme is £36.43m - table 2 provides a summary of the schemes 
currently financed by these resources. (See ref to agreed overprogramming in 
Para 8.4.1) 

Table 13:  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL 

Internally  funded   
investment 2018-21 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Schools 2,451 0 0 2,451 

Social Care  682 345 345 1,372 

Public Building programmes  3,049 960 960 4,969 

Regeneration & Town Centres 3,253 0 0 3,253 

Leisure Strategy 6,776 3,300 3,300 13,376 

Highways & Transport (Note) 3,843 1,550 1,450 6,843 

ICT Schemes 1,735 250 0 1,985 

Other 1,703 240 240 2,183 

Total Investment  23,492 6,645 6,295 36,432 

Note: Figures exclude the highways investment shown in paragraph 8.4.3.  

In order to update the programme for any new priorities that come forward as 
part of the bidding round a review of all un-committed schemes will have to be 
undertaken to confirm continued inclusion or replacement with new priorities.  

8.5.3. A review of the future year’s programme will be undertaken and reported back 
to Executive in February 2019. This will involve a review of existing planned 

Page 62



  

programmes against new emerging priorities including any invest to save 
measures required to support future revenue savings. 

8.6 Capital Investment Fund 
 

8.6.1. At Council on 22nd February 2017 an investment fund of £20m was 
established to support the acquisition of assets that will support local 
regeneration/economic development and/or yield future sustainable revenue 
streams for the Council and also cover borrowing costs. 

8.6.2. In July 2017 the Council agreed an Asset Investment Strategy and an 
Investment Fund of £300m, to fund projects which will deliver significant 
economic development and regeneration benefits for the area and/or increase 
the Council’s income generating capacity to move the Council into a more 
sustainable budget position. All investments would be in low risk assets and 
be capable of providing a revenue stream to support the budget, after all 
related debt and management costs and risk reserve had been taken into 
account.  

8.6.3. To date seven transactions have been agreed by the Investment Management 
Board at a total capital cost of £136.77m (see Table 4). This investment will 
provide a net benefit to support the revenue budget in 2018/19 and later 
years. 

Table 14 : Capital Investment Fund 
2017/18  2018/19    Total     

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Total Investment Fund   300,000 

Activity to date :    

Projected Cost   

K Site, Talbot Rd, Stretford 1,240 23,810 25,050 

Sonova House, Warrington 12,170  12,170 

DSG, Preston 17,390  17,390 

Grafton Centre incl. Travelodge Hotel, 
Altrincham 

10,840  10,840 

Brown Street, Hale  6,210 6,210 

Trafford Magistrates Court, Sale  4,300 4,300 

The Crescent, Salford : Debt financing 
for residential development 

 60,800 60,800 

Total investments 41,640 95,120 136,760 

Balance available   163,240 

 

8.6.4. The Asset Investment Strategy is already providing important revenue 
streams to support the revenue budget. It is recommended that the existing 
level of the Fund be increased from £300m to £400m to increase the existing 
capacity to gain future benefits. The increase will be funded from borrowing 
with approval being sought in February 2019 when setting the budget.  

Page 63



  

8.6.5. The Strategy has recently been updated to ensure the most appropriate 
approach is taken going forward (See Annex F). Focus will still be on 
achieving balanced risk, secure and sustainable income streams into the 
medium to long term, with particular emphasis placed on either development 
or investment debt across a wider geographical area.   

Page 64



  

Annex A 
 

Base Budget Assumptions 
 

Base Budget Assumptions 

2019/20 
£m 

2020/21 
£m 

2021/22 
£m 

Service Expenditure       

Pay: Inflation   
2.0% to 

7.3% 
2.0% 2.0% 

    £1.73 £1.32 £1.33 

Pay: Pension Inflation 0.0% 0.5% 0.5% 

    £0.00 £0.26 £0.26 

Pay: Increments & Pension Auto-Enrolment £0.06 £0.05 £0.05 

Pay: Living Wage £1.93 £1.57 £1.57 

General Inflation: Prices(*) 0.0% 2.0% 2.0% 

    £0.00 £0.28 £0.29 

Contractual Obligations: Inflation Specific e.g. energy £2.03 £1.91 £1.94 

Levies: Waste (GMWDA) Levy Increase £1.19 (£0.64) (£0.50) 

Demographics: Children £1.00 £1.00 £1.00 

  Adults £1.50 £1.50 £1.50 

Treasury Management       

Investment Rates 0.70% 0.99% 1.20% 

Debt Rates   2.50% 2.50% 2.50% 

Funding         

Council Tax rate increase (Adult Social Care) 1.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

Council Tax rate increase (Relevant Basic Amount) 2.99% 2.99% 2.99% 

Council Tax base increase 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 

Change in Baseline Funding Level (8.02)% 1.34% 1.35% 

    £(4.62) £0.71 £0.73 

 

* - General Inflation was assumed at 2%, however will be absorbed as part of 
proposed budget saving. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



  

B 
Annex B 

 
Subjective breakdown of Gross Budget Gap : 2019 to 2022 
 
 

 
The 2019-22 Revised Budget Gap October 2018 

 

Budget Forecasts 
2019/20 
(£'000) 

2020/21 
(£'000) 

2021/22 
(£'000) 

Impact 
over 3 
Years 
(£’000) 

Net Budget b/fwd 164,245 172,958 184,998  

Budget Assumptions:        

Pay 1,839 1,670 1,721 5,230 

Living Wage 1,929 1,572 1,572 5,073 

Inflationary 218 282 287 787 

Contractual Obligations 2,117 1,930 1,960 6,007 

Levies 1,188 639 507 2,334 

Demographic 2,500 2,500 2,500 7,500 

Grants, Legislative & Service 
Transfers * 

(2,198) 0 0 (2,198) 

Loss of Income (45) (250) 0 (295) 

Treasury Management (420) (698) 0 (1,118) 

Other 1,585 4,395 0 5,980 

Total Budget Assumptions 8,713 12,040 8,547 29,300 

Net Budget 172,958 184,998 193,545  

Funding:        

Council Tax (95,460) (96,476) (97,548)  

Council Tax Release of Prior Year 
Surplus (900)   

 

Business Rates (65,103) (53,894) (54,625)  

Contribution to Budget Support 
Reserve 

600   
 

Available Funding (160,863) (150,370) (152,173)  

Cumulative Gross Revised Budget 
Gap 

12,095 34,628 41,372 
 

Annual Revised Gross Budget Gap 12,095 22,533 6,744  

 
 

 

Page 66



  

 

100% Business Rates Retention GM Pilot    Annex C 

 
Business Rates Benefit Calculation 2018/2019 to 2021/2022 
 

 

2018/19 
100% PILOT 

£ 

2019/20 
100% PILOT 

£ 

2020/21 
100% PILOT 

£ 

2021/22 
100% PILOT 

£ 

Gross Rates Payable 182,565,243 186,368,685 190,172,128 193,975,571 

Transitional Adjustments and 
Mandatory & Discretionary Reliefs 

(15,865,758) (16,183,073) (16,506,735) (16,836,869) 

NET RATES PAYABLE 166,699,485 170,185,612 173,665,393 177,138,701 

Accounting Adjustments (Appeals & 
BDP) & Cost of Collection 

(12,636,373) (12,897,444) (13,159,564) (13,422,755) 

NNDR Income 154,063,112 157,288,169 160,505,829 163,715,946 

Local Share 152,522,481 155,715,287 158,900,771 162,078,786 

Tariff (87,609,184) (94,269,775) (96,502,443) (98,779,764) 

Retained Business Rates 64,913,297 61,445,512 62,398,328 63,299,023 

Baseline Funding Level (BFL) 57,725,323 53,095,701 53,810,343 54,539,278 

Growth 7,187,974 8,349,811 8,587,985 8,759,745 

SAICA Renewable Energy 80,952 82,571 84,222 85,907 

Section 31 Compensation Grants 7,299,896 7,455,608 7,567,748 7,681,454 

Growth/(Decline) to Baseline 14,568,822 15,887,990 16,239,956 16,527,106 

GM Pilot ‘No Detriment’ Over Payment (9,348,524) (10,127,144) (10,359,273) (10,548,073) 

GM Pilot ‘No Detriment’ Over Payment 
Rebate 

4,674,262 5,063,572 5,179,636 5,274,036 

Business Rates Benefit over BFL 9,894,560 10,824,418 11,060,319 11,253,070 

Release of Prior Year Surplus  1,181,000   

Business Rates Growth Reset  0 (10,976,097) (11,167,163) 

Business Rates Benefit of 100% Pilot 9,894,560 12,005,418 84,222 85,907 

 
Total Benefit from Business Rates 

 
2018/19 

100% PILOT 
£000 

2019/20 
100% PILOT 

£ 

2020/21 
100% PILOT 

£ 

2021/22 
100% PILOT 

£ 

Core Baseline Funding  35,031,470         35,732,100       36,446,741      37,175,677 

Revenue Support Grant 10,302,853         5,298,601              5,298,601            5,298,601  

Public Health Grant 12,391,000         12,065,000            12,065,000          12,065,000  

Total Baseline Funding Level 57,725,323 53,095,701 53,810,343 54,539,278 

Business Rates Benefit of 100% Pilot 9,894,560 12,005,418 84,222 85,907 

Total Benefit from Business Rates 67,619,883 65,101,119 53,894,565 54,625,184 

Yearly Change      

Change in BFL  (4,629,622) 714,642 728,935 

Change in Business Rates Benefit  2,110,857 (11,921,195) 1,684 

Yearly Change  (2,518,765) (11,206,553) 730,619 

Total reduction in Business Rates -£2.52m-£11.21m+£0.73m = -£13.0m 

Page 67



  
Income Proposals                                                                              Annex D 

Report 
Service 

Area Description of Saving 
2019/20 
£000’s 

2020/21 
£000’s 

2021/22 
£000’s 

Feb-18 PLACE 
Additional income Green 
Waste Charges 

(395)    

Feb-18 CENTRL 
CCTV New Trading 
Model 

(15)    

Feb-18 CW 
Strategic Investment 
Income 

(214)    

Feb-18 PLACE 
Net Income from Invest 
Props 

871 (150)  

Existing Income Proposals 247 (150)  

Oct-18 PLACE  
Net Income from Invest 
Props (identified) 

(1,500) (400) 1,900 

Oct-18 CW 
Increase in Strategic 
Investment Income 

(1,500) (500)  

Oct-18 PLACE 
Review of Car Parking 
charges 

(84) (73)  

Oct-18 PLACE 
Environmental Health - 
Increase Fee Income 
(various) 

(27) (5) (5) 

Oct-18 PLACE 
Licensing - knowledge 
test charge 

(20)     

Total New Income Proposals Oct 2018 (3,131) (978) 1,895 

Total Existing and New Income Proposals (2,884) (1,128) 1,895 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



  
 
Savings Proposals 
 

Report 
Service 

Area 
Description of 

Saving 
2019/20 
£000’s 

2020/21 
£000’s 

2021/22 
£000’s 

Feb-18 PLACE 
Mandatory 
Recycling 

(161)    

Feb-18 CENTRL 
Early Repayment 
of Suppliers 
Discount 

(50) (100)  

Total Existing Saving Proposals 
(updated Oct 18) 

(211) (100) 0 

Oct-18 CW 
Reduction in 
Insurance costs 

(50)     

Oct-18 Children 

Reduction in 
External 
Children's Home 
Use (4 children 
from OOB to in-
house provision) 

(371)     

Oct-18 Children 

Creation of New 
Post 16 
Accommodation 
(increasing 
internal 
provision) 

(202)     

Oct-18 ADULTS Let’s Talk (160)     

Oct-18 ADULTS 
Right Care For 
You 

(200)     

Oct-18 ADULTS 
Adults Re-
assessments 

(200)     

Oct-18 PLACE 

Development 
Management 
(Planning 
Performance 
Agreements - 
cost recovery) 

(35)     

Oct-18 PLACE 

Strategic 
Planning - 
Remove 
Greenspace 
funding 
contingency 
budget 

(40)     

Oct-18 PLACE 

Allotment 
Services - 
removal of 
subsidy 

(20)     

Oct-18 PLACE 

Environmental 
Health - Reduce 
budget of dog 
warden service  

(5)     

Oct-18 CENTRL 

Customer 
Services - reduce 
contact centre 
opening hours 

(21)     

Page 69



  

Oct-18 CENTRL 
Legal - CCG 
legal costs 

(10)     

Oct-18 CENTRL 

Legal - appoint 
litigation 
solicitor/reduce 
external costs 

(20)     

Oct-18 PLACE  
Housing Strategy 
- reduce running 
costs 

(10)     

Oct-18 CENTRL 
Partnerships - 
use of smoothing 
reserve - one off 

(100) 100   

Oct-18 CW 
New Strategic 
Investment 

    (250) 

Oct-18 CENTRL 
STAR 
contribution 

(36)     

Oct-18 CW 

Reinstate saving 
GMPF Reduced 
Allowance for 
Early 
Retirements 

(350)   

Oct-18 CW 
Advance Pension 
Payment 

  (757)   

Oct-18 ALL 
Remove General 
Inflation provision 

(218)   

Oct-18 CW 
Reduce General 
Contingency 

(600)   

Oct-18 CW 
Debt Restructure 
savings 

(200)   

Total New Savings Proposals 2018 (2,848) (657) (250) 

Total existing and new Savings 
Proposals 

(3,059) (757) (250) 

 

 
Total existing and new Income 
Proposals (2,884) (1,128) 1,895 

Total existing and new Savings 
Proposals 

(3,059) (757) (250) 

Total Savings and Income 
Proposals (Oct 18) 

(5,943) (1,885) 1,645 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 70



  

2019/2020 SUBJECTIVE ANALYSIS

CFW

(£000's)

PLACE

(£000's)

CENTRAL

(£000's)

Council-

wide

(£000's)

Funding & 

Reserves

(£000's)

Total

(£000's)

NET BUDGET Brought Forward 92,195 23,811 16,816 31,423 164,245

Budget Pressures :

Pay 622 119 554 544 1,839

Living Wage 1,605 50 274 0 1,929

General Inflation 31 68 117 2 218

Contractual Inflation & Obligations 1,165 807 145 0 2,117

Levies 0 8,632 0 (7,444) 1,188

Social Care Demographic 2,500 0 0 0 2,500

Grants, Legislative & Service Transfers (2,464) 0 0 266 (2,198)

Loss of Income 0 (45) 0 0 (45)

Treasury Management 0 0 0 (420) (420)

Policy Choice Investment 0 0 0 0 0

Other 0 283 154 1,148 1,585

Total Budget Pressures 3,459 9,914 1,244 (5,904) 8,713

Budget Savings

Income Generation 0 (526) (15) (2,343) (2,884)

Savings Proposals Efficiences & Policy Choice (1,164) (339) (354) (1,202) (3,059)

Total Approved Budget Proposals (1,164) (865) (369) (3,545) (5,943)

PROPOSED NET BUDGET 94,490 32,860 17,691 21,974 0 167,015

Funding:

Council Tax (95,441) (95,441)

Council Tax - 2.99% General Increase (2,853) (2,853)

Council Tax - 2% Adult Social Care Increase (955) (955)

C Tax Prior Year Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit (900) (900)

Business Rates: Local Share (147,366) (147,366)

Business Rates: Tariff Payment 94,270 94,270

Business Rates: Growth Assumptions, S31 Grants, 

GM Pilot (12,007) (12,007)

 Funding Total (165,252) (165,252)

PROPOSED FUNDING (165,252) (165,252)

Additional Use of Reserves:

Budget Support Reserve 600 600

Movement in Reserves Total 600 600

FUNDING FROM RESERVES 600 600

BUDGET GAP 2,363

Annex E 
 

2019/20 Subjective (Spend) Budget Analysis 
 
 

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 

INSERT PICTURE HERE OR DELETE TEXT 

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT 

STRATEGY 

Document Subtitle 

Document Subject 

Date 

 

INSERT CLIENT LOGO HERE  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ASSET INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 
Prepared by CBRE Investment Advisory for 
Trafford Borough Council 

 
October 2018  
 

Page 73



   

 

 

CONTENTS 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY .............................................................. 2 

2. INTRODUCTION ....................................................................... 4 

3. INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES ........................................................ 5 

4. GEOGRAPHIC CONSIDERATIONS ............................................. 6 

5. INVESTMENT STRATEGY ........................................................... 8 

6. INVESTMENT TACTICS ............................................................ 12 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This investment strategy has been prepared by CBRE Investment Advisory, part of CBRE Capital Advisors Ltd, 

an appointed representative of CBRE Indirect Investment Services Ltd, which is authorised and regulated by 

the Financial Conduct Authority.   

Page 74



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 2
 

 

EX
EC

UT
IV

E 
SU

M
M

AR
Y 

INTRODUCTION 

CBRE Investment Advisory has updated Trafford Borough Council’s Investment Strategy 

(originally drafted in September 2017) to take account of changes to Government Guidance in 

relation to local authority investment.  

We understand that the Council needs to generate a sustainable income stream to help support 

its local services. It intends to do this by borrowing from the PWLB and investing into real estate. 

The Council is happy to invest via both equity and debt (lending to third parties) so long as it 

generates an appropriate risk adjusted return.  

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

The Council’s primary objective is to create a suitable income stream to support local services. 

However, there may be opportunity to generate secondary benefits from the investments. This 

should not be at the risk of not achieving the primary objective. 

GEOGRAPHIC ZONES 

The Council would prefer to invest locally, or at least within Greater Manchester. However, it is 

acknowledged that with this geographic restriction the Council may find it difficult to achieve its 

income targets at the right risk profile. We have therefore discussed the concept of geographical 

Zones, whereby investments in different geographic locations (Zones) must meet different 

criteria.  

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

We will be flexible in the type of investments that are made and will consider both equity and 

debt investments. Currently development lending provides good risk adjusted returns, however 

the Council should be conscious that the returns are irregular and the capital will need to be 

continuously recycled which may not be sustainable in the long term.  Furthermore, market 

conditions may change in the future.  

The over-arching strategy is therefore to capitalise on the current development lending market, 

but ensure we build up a robust and sustainable income stream for the Council in the future. 

Therefore, whilst development lending will likely form a major part of the investment strategy, at 

least in the short to medium term, we will ensure due attention is given to building the Council’s 

direct real estate and investment lending platforms for the long term. 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 75



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 3
 

 

EX
EC

UT
IV

E 
SU

M
M

AR
Y 

INVESTMENT TACTICS 

Direct Investment 

When targeting direct investments, we will focus on quality properties in strong locations, to 

ensure the Council invests its funds prudently. Due to this requirement, and the prevailing level 

of prime yields in the investment markets, we will target investments with minimum yields of 5.5% 

(5.25% if index linked) for direct acquisitions – with a minimum net income of £100k per annum 

to the Council after its borrowing costs.  

Broader equity investments will be made on a case by case basis.   

Development Lending 

For development lending, we will target superior quality schemes and developers with a strong 

track record. We will focus on senior lending, set appropriate covenants on all loans to ensure 

the Council has sufficient headroom and target a minimum IRR of 7% (with a minimum interest 

rate of 5.5%). These facilities will typically be for a period of up to 3 years. It should be noted 

that the Council has yet to make any investments of this nature since developing this investment 

strategy. 

Investment Lending 

For investment lending, we will target superior quality well-let assets. We will focus on senior 

lending, at appropriate leverage to protect the Council’s investment and target a minimum IRR 

of 5.0% (with a minimum interest rate of 3.5%). It should be noted that the Council has yet to 

make any investments of this nature. 

Flexibility 

The investment tactics will be reviewed and adjusted in line with market conditions. 

 

Page 76



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INTRODUCTION 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 4
 

 

IN
TR

OD
UC

TI
ON

 

BACKGROUND 

Trafford Borough Council (Trafford or the Council) enlisted the services of CBRE Investment 

Advisory (CBRE IA) in July 2017 as its retained strategic real estate Investment Advisor. The 

Council’s primary objective of investing into real estate was to deliver a sustainable commercial 

income return to support its underlying service delivery. It intended to do this through borrowing 

from the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB). 

At that point in time the net income return sought by the Council was approximately £7 million 

per annum. This figure was to be ‘net’ of the costs of capital through the PWLB, including an 

allocation to the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) to repay the loan. The income will also be 

net of cost associated with holding the investments, however this will be relatively low due to the 

nature of the target investments. 

Following a series of workshops with the Council, CBRE IA devised an investment strategy in 

September 2017, which was subsequently agreed at the Council’s cabinet meeting.  

CHANGES TO GOVERNMENT GUIDANCE 

In December 2017, the government launched a consultation on local authority investment and 

subsequently published guidance on the topic. This had several implications for the investment 

strategy agreed in 2017; most notably as follows: 

 Specific guidance around the treatment of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP); 

 MRP will only apply to completed assets; 

 Loans can be made to third parties locally to assist development and regeneration; 

 More accountability and transparency, especially around commercial investments, and 

 A greater focus on local investment and regeneration. 

This has impacted the level of investment activity that local authorities have undertaken. Primarily 

because the effective cost of capital (interest on loan + MRP + admin costs) has increased. 

NEW INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

This has caused the Council to have to rethink its priorities and wider investment strategy. The 

Council has therefore asked CBRE IA, to update the strategy considering these changes with a 

view to generate a sustainable income stream through investment into real estate.  

This strategy should be considered as an update to the original September 2017 strategy, which 

has been included at Appendix A.  

INTRODUCTION  

Page 77



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 5
 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T O

BJ
EC

TI
VE

S 

SECTION SUMMARY 

“The Councils primary objective is to generate an income stream to support the Council’s wider service delivery. The income 

must be sustainable, secure and diversified with an appropriate risk adjusted return. We will consider investments with 

secondary economic benefits where it is appropriate to do so, but never at the risk of not fulfilling the primary objective.”  

PRIMARY OBJECTIVE 

Before advising on any investment strategy it is imperative that objectives are clearly defined so 

that, where possible, performance can be benchmarked and success easily measured.  

The September 2017 strategy report included the key investment objectives of the Council at the 

time. Whilst these remain broadly consistent we have identified them again below for 

completeness:  

The Primary Objective remains to: 

“Generate a sustainable income to support the Local Authority’s wider service delivery”. 

It is understood that the Council wishes to generate an income stream from this investment 

strategy to support its service delivery.  

SECONDARY OBJECTIVES 

Whilst the primary objective will always remain our priority, it is understood that if investments 

can also generate secondary economic or social benefits then this will be considered a desirable 

quality by the Council.  

However, it is important to be clear that to achieve the Council’s Primary Objective, most of the 

investments that we recommend will be commercial by nature. Importantly, if too much 

emphasis is placed on these secondary objectives the Council will not be able to achieve its 

primary objective.  

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES 

Page 78



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

GEOGRAPHIC CONSIDERATIONS 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 6
 

 

GE
OG

RA
PH

IC
 C

ON
SI

DE
RA

TI
ON

S 

SECTION SUMMARY 

“The fewer investment restrictions that an investor requires, the more opportunity they will have to create a strong risk 

balanced investment portfolio. We therefore advise the Council to only restrict its investment activities where it is legally 

compelled to do so, as otherwise there is a significant risk that the primary objective will not be achieved and the risk profile 

would not be considered prudent or secure.” 

CONTEXT 

When the September 2017 strategy was produced the Council wanted to focus its investments in 

the north-west of the UK. Although it was acknowledged that this would result in far lower 

opportunity and pipeline.  

To put this into context the UK investment market in 2017 had a total transaction volume of 

approximately £63Bn1, with the north-west accounting for just £3Bn or 4% of the total market. 

This trend has continued when looking at YTD 2018 figures. 

FUTURE STRATEGY 

It is understood that there is still a desire to invest locally where possible, but it is important to 

understand that solely doing so will be at the detriment to the Council’s primary objective and 

will increase the risk of the investment portfolio.  

When we met to discuss the strategy we therefore agreed that investments should be classed into 

one of three geographical zones. The investment characteristics that an individual investment 

would need to exhibit would then be different dependent upon which zone the investment falls.  

 

                                                 

1 Property Data – Total Transactions UK 2017 

GEOGRAPHIC CONSIDERATIONS 

Greater Manchester  

Zone 1 

Neighbouring Boroughs 

Zone 2 

UK Wide 

Zone 3 

Page 79



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

GEOGRAPHIC CONSIDERATIONS 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 7
 

 

GE
OG

RA
PH

IC
 C

ON
SI

DE
RA

TI
ON

S 

Whilst all investments must achieve the primary objective of sustainable income generation, it is 

acknowledged that those in Zone 1 and 2 will likely have secondary benefits as well. Therefore, 

a different view can be taken on risk/return over those investments that are purely for 

commercial purposes. To execute this strategy the Council may require a formal investment 

vehicle. It is important to define, and agree, the characteristics that investments should have in 

each of the ‘Zones’. The investment priorities we would expect (in order of priority) for each of 

the zones is as follows: 

Zone 1 (Greater Manchester) Zone 2 (Neighbouring Boroughs) Zone 3 (UK Wide) 

Commercial Return 

Regeneration/Development 

Supporting local investment  

Supporting local services 

Commercial Return 

Regeneration / Development 

The regeneration link will be validated 

on a case by case basis. 

 

Commercial Return 

It is however important to reiterate the point that if investment is restricted to Zone 1 (Greater 

Manchester) the market opportunity and pipeline (across all investment classes) will be 

significantly reduced. By way of example Greater Manchester only accounted for 2% of the UK 

direct investment market in 2017 and there were on 33 deals over £10m over the full year, 

compared to a UK Wide total of 1,014 transactions (Property Data).  

  

 

 

Page 80



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 8
 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T S

TR
AT

EG
Y 

SECTION SUMMARY 

“The primary objective is one of income generation, but there are multiple ways to invest into real estate – all of which will 

have a place in a balanced investment strategy. However, it is important to understand that the relative weightings to each 

will evolve as we build a sustainable long-term portfolio and that whilst some types of investment are appealing today, the 

depth and changes in the market will likely mean more sustainable solutions will need to be found in future.” 

INVESTMENT CHARACTERISTICS 

To date, we have invested both directly via equity and indirectly into developments via debt.  

It is important to understand that whilst development lending is a good short-term solution, over 

the longer term the Council will need to build up a sustainable direct portfolio and investment 

lending platform to ensure it is best placed to achieve its income objectives in the future.  

The following table identifies the key considerations of each investment type: 

 Direct Investment (Equity) Development (Debt) Investment (Debt) 

A
d
va

n
ta

g
e
s 

Ownership of physical asset 

Sustainable and regular income 

Alternative uses for building/site 

Ability to add value to investment 

(capita growth/improvement)  

Supporting local occupiers (in 

Zone 1). 

Regeneration benefits (in Zone 1)  

Typically, higher income return 

than direct investment. 

No MRP requirement 

LTV/LTC provides risk cover 

Downstream benefits from 

funding new development 

Current market opportunity 

Costs borne by borrower 

No MRP requirement 

Similar returns to direct 

investment, but with lower risk 

Costs borne by borrower  

Regular income, with interest 

typically paid quarterly 

Longer investment periods of 5-

10 years mean sustainable 

returns 

D
is

a
d
va

n
ta

g
e
s 

Impact of MRP on returns 

Prime assets have low yields 

Lack of local opportunity at right 

risk profile.  

Susceptible to the full effect of 

negative market movement 

(capital falls) 

Irregular returns (typically repaid 

at expiry of facility) 

Short investment period (1-3 

years) 

Need to constantly recycle 

investments to generate a return 

Increasing competition in the 

sector has pressure on margins 

High concentration and market 

risk if all in Zone 1 

Typically lower returns than 

development lending 

Highly competitive, means can 

be difficult to find opportunity 

Margins may be too low for 

secure assets.  

Likely to be limited opportunity in 

Zone 1.  

Whilst development and investment lending do not require MRP to be set aside, they do require 

annual assessments which could lead to impairments that may impact the revenue. 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

Page 81



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 9
 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T S

TR
AT

EG
Y 

 

COST OF BORROWING 

The following table demonstrates the average total cost of capital for each investment type that 

will ultimately impact the net income that the Council receives as follows:  

 Direct Investment Development Debt Investment Debt 

PWLB Rate* 2.55% pa. (50 year) 1.78% pa. (3 year) 1.96% pa. (5 year) 

MRP 2.00% pa. (50 year) 0.00% pa. 0.00% pa. 

Admin 0.20% pa. 0.20% pa. 0.20% pa. 

Total 4.75% pa. 1.98% pa. 2.16% pa. 

*PWLB Rates effective 16.08.2018 (Maturity) 

The total cost of capital for each investment type is made up of the PWLB interest rate (dependent 

on the loan period), any Minimum Revenue Provision (“MRP”) required and a nominal 

administration fee. A risk reserve will also be included on direct investment on a case by case 

basis, based on the risk profile of the asset to form an appropriate portfolio level risk reserve. 

This reserve contribution could be in the region of 0.5% of the principal investment value per 

annum and would increase the total cost of borrowing to 5.25%. 

The cost of capital for direct investment is higher than for both forms of lending, due to the 

requirement for an MRP to repay the facility after the 50-year period.  

TYPICAL NET INCOME 

Typical net returns will differ between the investment options based on the cost of capital and 

market rates. We expect the right sort of direct investments to provide the Council a yield of 

between 5.25% and 6.25%. Based on this, the margin the Council would receive would be 

between 50bps and 150bps above its borrowing costs. For example, this means to achieve an 

income of £10m per annum the Council would have to invest between £675m and £2Bn. At 

5.25% cost of borrowing (inclusion of a risk reserve), then direct property investments with an 

average return of 6% would require an investment of £1.3bn to give a £10m return per annum. 

The other end of the scale, development lending, which has the lowest cost of borrowing, will 

typically have a return of approximately 6.00% per annum. Because of the lower cost of 

borrowing (c.2.00%) the net income to the Council would be approximately 400bps. This means 

that to achieve £10m of income per annum using development lending the Council would need 

to have approximately £250m invested at any one time.  

Page 82



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 1
0 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T S

TR
AT

EG
Y 

This demonstrates the typical net returns from each of the investment types. Based on this is 

would be easy to assume that development lending alone will be sufficient to create a 

sustainable income stream. However, the nature of the investment and the prevailing market 

conditions means that this is unlikely to achieve the Council’s objectives over the medium to long 

term as it is unlikely to be sustainable.  

The ultimate scale of investment will depend on the balance between direct and debt investments 

and will change over time. 

DEFINING THE STRATEGY 

Rather than setting arbitrary allocations to the different investment types, we have considered the 

best way to generate the sustainable income stream that the Council needs over the short, 

medium and longer term. This is based on prevailing market conditions, consideration of the 

geographical zones and the likely speed of capital deployment.  

It is also acknowledged that the investment strategy will evolve over time as the investment 

portfolio becomes more mature.  

 

Short Term 

The strategy will initially continue to focus on development lending (primarily in Zone 1), whilst 

there is opportunity to do so. This will provide the Council with the ability to invest meaningful 

amounts in the short term. 

As income from development lending is a) irregular and b) will need to be recycled regularly, we 

will also focus on acquiring direct property and building an investment lending platform to build 

up the proportion of income that is genuinely sustainable.  

 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Income  Composition Over Time

Direct Investment Investment Lending Development Lending

Page 83



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 1
1 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T S

TR
AT

EG
Y 

Medium Term 

Over the medium term we will continue to build the direct portfolio and investment lending 

platform. This will reduce the need to recycle the development loans and will help the Council 

develop a stable income base for the future.  

The speed that we can achieve this will depend upon prevailing market conditions, but it is 

necessary to ensure the income is long-term and sustainable. 

Long Term 

Over the longer term most of the income should come from suitable investments, either directly 

investing or through investment lending. This will ensure the Council can support its services 

through a regular and sustainable income steam. 

This will then be supplemented with development lending, which may give enhanced returns but 

will not be as regular.  

Page 84



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT TACTICS 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 1
2 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T T

AC
TI

CS
 

SECTION SUMMARY 

“Sustainable and secure income remains a key objective. Sector recommendations should shape the over-arching strategy, 

but individual property fundamentals remain key (over a default sector bias) with attention given to the location, building 

quality, rental profile, covenant, lease length and alternative use. The Council should also consider diversification in 

investment method (direct or debt).” 

DIRECT INVESTMENT 

The key principles of the direct investment strategy are as follows: 

 The target net initial yield should be a minimum of 5.25% for inflation-linked/fixed-

uplift income and 5.50% for all other investments. This will provide the Council with 

between 50bps and 75bps as a minimum net return.  

 In line with the primary objective of a sustainable income stream, there will be a focus 

on running yield as opposed to IRR. 

 Given prevailing market conditions, if these ‘hurdle rates’ are set too high the Council 

risks not being able to buy assets that offer appropriate income security in line with its 

primary objective. Equally, we believe a secure 50bps of income is more aligned with 

your objectives than investments with a higher initial yield, but with a tangible risk of 

income falling away.  

 We will typically advise against purely commercial opportunities with a yield of above 

6.75% due to the risk they present. Most prime yields are now significantly below this 

level across all sectors. It is important that the Council understands that the risk will be 

higher when there is a focus on yield over quality.  

 Based on sector performance and the objectives, we will have an openminded 

approach to the different sectors (e.g. offices, retail and logistics). Instead focusing on 

good-quality buildings in good locations.  

 A range of lot sizes will be considered, although a target income of £100k per annum 

to the Council should be targeted.  

Broader equity investments will be made on a case by case basis.   

DEVELOPMENT LENDING 

The key principles of the development lending strategy are as follows: 

 Typical interest rates will be 5.5% per annum in line with current market rates for secure 

investments. This will be an ‘all in’ rate, rather than a margin above LIBOR. This will 

provide the Council with sufficient margin above its borrowing costs. 

INVESTMENT TACTICS  

Page 85



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT TACTICS 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 1
3 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T T

AC
TI

CS
 

 We will target a minimum overall IRR of 7.0% per annum, with a maximum facility 

period of three years.  

 We will seek to enhance the Council’s returns, through a combination of other fees on 

the facility (including arrangement fees, exit fees, commitment and cancelation fees).  

 All loans will be senior facilities, with a fixed first charge over the freehold interest. 

Other lenders may make up the capital stack, but only at a more junior position to the 

Council. 

 Quality residential and commercial schemes will be targeted, primarily within Zone 1 

(Greater Manchester), and in borough where appropriate.  

 We will look to support schemes where the developer has a good track record and 

where the property provides appropriate security for the loan. 

 A minimum commitment of £10m will be set per facility, to ensure the they are additive 

to the Council’s investment portfolio.  

 A maximum LTV Ratio of 70% and a maximum LTC Ratio of 80% will be set to ensure 

there is sufficient headroom above the Council’s investment.  

INVESTMENT LENDING 

The key principles of the investment lending strategy are as follows: 

 Typical interest rate will be 4.0% per annum in line with current market rates for secure 

investments. This will provide the Council with sufficient margin above its borrowing 

costs and a regular income, whist being competitive against incumbent lenders. These 

rates will typically be fixed for the term. 

 We will target a minimum overall IRR of 4.0% per annum. 

 We will seek longer term facility periods of 3-10 years to ensure sustainable income for 

the Council over the medium to long term.   

 All loans will be senior facilities, with a fixed first charge over the freehold interest. 

Other lenders may make up the capital stack, but only at a more junior position to the 

Council. 

 Quality commercial assets will be targeted, to ensure the Council’s investment is secure.  

 A minimum commitment of £8m will be set per facility, to ensure the they are additive 

to the Council’s investment portfolio.  

 A maximum LTV Ratio of 70% will be set to ensure there is sufficient headroom above the 

Council’s investment.   

Page 86



CBRE | REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

INVESTMENT TACTICS 

 

 

   

 

 

 Pa
ge

 1
4 

 

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
T T

AC
TI

CS
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 
 
Report to: Standards Committee, Scrutiny Committee, Executive and Council.  
Date: 17 October 2018, 7 November 2018, 26 November 2018 and 28 

November 2018. 
Report for:  Discussion / Decision 
Report of:  Corporate Director for Governance & Community Strategy and 

Monitoring Officer  

 
Report Title 
 

 
Constitution Working Group – Proposed Changes to the Council’s Constitution 
 

 
Summary 
 

 
A cross-party Constitution Working Group, Chaired by the Executive Member for 
Constitutional Reform and Resident Engagement, was formed in June 2018. The 
Group was established to review current practice in a number of areas and to make 
recommendations for changes and improvements, with the aim of improving 
openness, transparency and public engagement in a number of areas including 
 

 Allowing public questions at the start of all Executive and Committee meetings. 

 Reducing the threshold for petitions to be heard at full Council and to allow 
petitioners to address meetings of the Executive. 

 Enabling smaller groups to submit motions for debate by reducing the number 
of signatories from three to two.  

 Extending webcasting to Executive and Committee meetings. 

 Publishing a public summary of decisions taken by the Executive. 

 Adding a lay member to the Audit Committee to enhance public scrutiny of 
financial management and governance. 

 Agreeing to changes to improve the scrutiny function. 
 
This report sets out the Group’s proposed recommended changes to date. 
 
Standards Committee/Scrutiny Committee/Executive are asked to comment on the 
proposals prior to the formal submission of the report to Council in November.  
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
That the Standards Committee, Scrutiny Committee, Executive, and Council provide 
any comments they may have on the proposed recommendation as set out below. 
 
************************************************************************************************** 

1) That Council agree the proposed changes as set out in the report. 
 
 

Page 89

Agenda Item 5



2) That the Corporate Director for Governance and Community Strategy be 
authorised to amend the Constitution of the Council in accordance with and as 
a consequence of this report and other decisions made by Council at this 
meeting. 

 

 
  
Implications 
 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 

The proposed changes are aimed at improving 
transparency and engagement with the Council’s 
priorities.  

Financial Implications There are no specific financial issues arising from 
this report, although there is some one-off 
expenditure arising from the proposals to webcast 
additional Council Committee meetings which will 
be met from the legal and democratic budget. 
 

Legal Implications The Council is required to review and update its 
constitution from time to time. This report reflects 
the review carried out by the Cross Party 
Constitution Working Group in consultation with 
the Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy. 
 

Equality/Diversity Implications None 

Sustainability Implications None 

Staffing/E-Government/Asset 
Management Implications 

None  

Risk Management Implications   None  

Health and Safety Implications None  

 
 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 

Name: Peter Forrester 
Extension: 1815 
Name: Chris Gaffey 
Extension: 2019 
 
 

Background Papers:  
 
Reports submitted to the Constitutional Working Group 
 

 

Page 90



1.0 Background 
 
A cross-party Constitution Working Group, Chaired by the Executive Member for 
Constitutional Reform and Resident Engagement, was formed in June 2018 to review 
current practice in a number of areas, and to make recommendations for changes and 
improvements.  The Group discussed a range of issues with the objective of improving 
openness, transparency and public engagement within the Council. Some of the 
proposed improvements require a change to the Council’s Constitution. 
 
The Working Group Membership consisted of the following Elected Members: 
 

Councillors M. Freeman (Chair), D. Acton, Dr K. Barclay, R. Bowker, 
G. Coggins and M. Young. 

 
Meetings were attended by the Council’s Monitoring Officer, the Head of Governance, 
and a representative from the Communities and Partnerships Team. Reports were 
produced for Members’ consideration on each area of review. 
 
The Group met on two occasions and agreed the recommended changes, which are 
set out in sections 2.1 and 2.2 of the report. Further meetings of the Group will be 
scheduled to discuss the areas still under review, which are set out in section 2.3 of 
the report. 
 
 
2.0 Summary of Proposed Changes 
 

2.1 Changes which require an amendment to the Constitution 
 

Questions and Public Scrutiny 

Questions at 
meetings 
 

The Group agreed that provisions for taking questions from 
members of the public at the start of Council meetings, held in 
public, should be set out in the Constitution.  
 
The Leader or the Chairman of the relevant body / Committee 
would have discretion about how these questions were 
managed at each meeting. 
 

Petitions The Group felt that the current threshold of 3,000 signatures for 
a petition to be debated at full Council was too high and is a 
barrier to public engagement and representation. They also felt 
that a provision to allow petitioners to address the Executive 
should be included in the scheme as many decisions are those 
for the Executive to take.  
 
The Group agreed that a threshold of 300 signatures be set for a 
petition to be debated at a meeting of the Executive, and a 
threshold of 500 signatures be set for a petition to be debated at 
full Council. 
 
Other minor changes to the Council’s Petition scheme were 
agreed, with the responsibility for finalising the Petition Scheme 
delegated to the Head of Governance. 
 
 

Page 91



Substitute Members 

Provision for 
Substitute Members 
at Employment 
Committee 

The Working Group agreed that provisions to allow one 
substitute Member for each Group for the Employment 
Committee should be included in the Constitution.  
 
The Employment Committee is held during the day and 
therefore it may sometimes be difficult for Committee Members 
to attend. Therefore a provision for substitute Members should 
be made.  
 
 

Motions   

Number of Members 
supporting a motion.  

The Working Group felt that the rules requiring written notice of 
every motion to be signed by at least 3 members, or with 
electronic consent of at least 3 members should be amended to 
reduce this to two Members.  This would enable smaller parties 
to participate in the process.  

 
2.2 Changes which do not require an amendment to the Constitution 

 

Openness of Council Meetings 

Quarterly e-Bulletin 
 

To improve openness and public engagement, the Group 
agreed that an e-Bulletin detailing the Executive and Council 
decisions should be published quarterly with effect from October 
2018. 
 

Webcasting To improve openness and transparency, it was agreed that the 
Council should extend the webcasting facility to other Committee 
and Board meetings held in public.  
 
After considering a number of options, it was agreed that the 
Council would webcast these additional meetings via its 
YouTube channel using a standalone camera and microphone 
system in the Committee Rooms. This would be implemented on 
a 12 month trial basis, with the other options revisited after this 
period.  
 
Following the trial, if it was felt that the standalone camera 
option had not met the Council’s objectives to an adequate 
standard, consideration should be given to installing a full 
webcasting system in Committee Rooms 2 & 3. 
 
There is a small set up cost of approximately £1000 to purchase 
ICT and cameras for this option. 
 

Questions by Members at Council 

Questions by 
Members at Council 
 

Questions raised by Members at full Council meetings will now 
be published on the Council’s website in advance of the 
meeting. This will allow Members of the public to see what 
issues are to be raised in the meeting.  
 
This was actioned for the September meeting of Council.  
 
 

Page 92



Audit Committee 

Appointment of 
Independent member 
of the Accounts and 
Audit Committee 

There are already provisions in place for the appointment of an 
Independent member of the Accounts & Audit Committee, but 
this provision has not been utilised.   
 
The Group agreed the process for making this appointment, with 
the responsibility for finalising the process delegated to the 
Corporate Director, Governance & Community Strategy and the 
Head of Governance.  
 
The Group stressed the importance of ensuring proper due 
diligence was performed before making the appointment. 
 
This role will be advertised shortly.  
 

Scrutiny 

Review of Scrutiny – 
Action Plan 
 

Following the Scrutiny Committee’s Review of the Council’s 
Scrutiny Function earlier in the year, the Constitution Working 
Group considered the report’s recommendations and the 
Executive’s response. The Group agreed with the Executive 
response to the recommendations, but felt that recommendation 
4 about the Chair of the Committee providing a written report 
should be more explicit in ensuring that a verbal update could be 
provided in conjunction with any written Scrutiny report 
presented to Council. 
 
It was agreed that the accepted recommendations should be 
implemented as soon as practically possible. 
 
The Executive response to the Scrutiny report is attached 
(Appendix 1). 
 

 
2.3  Other areas still under consideration. 
 

Area Governance 

Area Governance 
 

The Group held discussions relating to Area Governance 
and how the Council consults with residents. 
 
It was felt that the distinction would need to be made as to 
whether the Council were looking to adopt a formal 
consultation process or strategy, or whether a less formal 
approach should be taken in an attempt to improve 
engagement with residents. 
 
The Corporate Director for Governance and Community 
Strategy and the Head of Partnerships & Communities, in 
consultation with the Executive Member for Constitutional 
Reform and Resident Engagement, will continue these 
discussions and submit proposals to the Executive on the 
most appropriate way to progress this. 
 
 
 

Page 93



Motions 

Motions at full Council Concerns have been raised on a number of occasions in the 
past about the number of motions being submitted to full 
Council meetings. On occasion, time constraints have led to 
motions not being adequately debated. 
 
The Group considered a report providing options for 
proposed changes to how motions are considered at full 
Council meetings. 
 
Members agreed that this item would be deferred to a future 
meeting of the Working Group to allow Members to discuss 
the proposals with their respective political groups. Members 
have been asked to send their comments to the Head of 
Governance, who would produce a report for consideration 
at a future meeting of the Working Group. 
 

Electronic Agenda 

Electronic Agenda 
 

The number of Members requesting paper copies of agenda 
is continuing to increase, resulting in additional print and 
staff time costs for the Council.  The view of the Working 
Group is that this is due to ICT problems rather than ways of 
working by Members who are keen to reduce the 
environmental impact of paper agenda.  
 
Concerns about the ICT equipment provided to Members 
have been noted, and following the recent appointment of 
the new Chief Digital Officer, new ICT solutions are being 
explored. 
 
The intention is to move all meetings to being paperless 
once the ICT concerns have been adequately addressed. 
 
The Working Group will discuss progress against this area 
at a future meeting.  
 

 
 
3.0 Recommendations 
 
That the Standards Committee, Scrutiny Committee, Executive, and Council provide 
any comments they may have on the proposed recommendation as set out below. 
 
************************************************************************************************** 

1) That Council agree the proposed changes as set out in the report. 
 

2) That the Corporate Director for Governance and Community Strategy be 
authorised to amend the Constitution of the Council in accordance with and as 
a consequence of this report and other decisions made by Council at this 
meeting. 

 

Page 94



TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:  Scrutiny Committee  
Date:    7 November 2018 
Report for:   Information 
Report of:  Chair of the Scrutiny Committee   
  
Report Title 
 

 
Overview Report 
 

 
Purpose 
 

 
This report provides information on the following: 
 

 Work Programme 

 Task & Finish Groups 

 Recommendation Tracker 

 Summary of Executive Decisions 
 

 
Recommendations 
 

 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Chris Gaffey, Democratic & Scrutiny Officer. 
Phone:  x2019 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 6



1. Work Programme 

Wednesday 4 July 2018 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall  
Report submission deadline – midday Tuesday 26 June 2018 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

Executive’s Response to the 
Task & Finish Group Review 
of the Council’s Scrutiny 
Processes 
 

The Executive are to provide a 
response to the Committee’s Task 
and Finish Group report following a 
review of the Council’s Scrutiny 
Function, which was presented to the 
Executive at their meeting on 19 
March 2018. 
 

Cllr M Freeman - 
Executive Member 
for Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 
 

Peter Forrester The Majority of 
recommendations have been 
accepted and are to be 
considered for adoption by the 
Constitutional Working Group. 

Public Engagement with 
Scrutiny 
 

The Executive Member for 
Constitutional Reform and Resident 
Engagement would lead a discussion 
on public engagement with Scrutiny. 

Cllr M Freeman - 
Executive Member 
for Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 
 

Peter Forrester In principle support for 
webcasting / broadcasting and 
will be explored further by the 
Constitutional Working Group 

Greater Manchester 
Strategy Implementation 
Plan and Current 
Performance Dashboard 
 

The Executive Member for Equalities 
and Partnerships would provide an 
update on the development of the two 
year Greater Manchester Strategy 
Implementation Plan, along with a 
copy of the GMS performance 
dashboard. 
 

Cllr C Hynes - The 
Executive Member 
for Equalities and 
Partnerships 

N/A The matter is to be discussed at 
the Scrutiny Chairs meeting with 
the Leader of the Council to see 
how it can be taken forward. 

ADP Report (2017/18 
Quarter Four) 
 

A report providing a summary of 
performance against the Council’s 
Annual Delivery Plan, 2017/18, 

Cllr M Freeman - 
Executive Member 
for Constitutional 

Peter Forrester Performance noted and 
concerns raised about: sickness 
absence; litter; and delayed 

P
age 96



covering the period 1 January to 31 

March 2018. 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 
 

transfers of care (adult social 
care). 

Work Programme A report detailing the Committee’s 
proposed work programme for the 
year. 
 

N/A - Report of the 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
Chairman 

Chris Gaffey Noted the work programme and 
the prioritisation being given to 
the Task & Finish Group Review 
of the Amey Contract. 
 

 

Wednesday 3 October 2018 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall 
Report submission deadline – midday on Tuesday 25 September 2018 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

2019/20 Budget Gap and 
Assumptions / Progress 
against the financial risks 
Identified as part of the 
2018/19 Budget Scrutiny 
process 

An update on the 2019/20 Budget 
Gap and the assumptions behind this 
to be provided to the Committee. 
 
As part of the 2018/19 Budget 
Scrutiny process, the Committee 
were provided a list of the proposed 
savings / income generation and the 
risks associated with achieving these. 
The Committee would like an update 
on progress against these. 
 

Cllr M Cordingley - 
Finance 

Nikki Bishop The Budget Gap and 
Assumptions were discussed, 
and the Chair met with the 
relevant officers following the 
meeting to discuss budget 
reserves in more detail. The 
Leader would present the draft 
budget proposals at the next 
meeting in November. 

Executive’s Response to the 
Task & Finish Group Review 
of the Council’s CRM 
System 

The Executive are to provide a 
response to the Committee’s Task 
and Finish Group report following a 
review of the Council’s CRM system, 
which was presented to the Executive 

Cllr Freeman - 
Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 

Jane Le Fevre Scrutiny’s recommendations 
were accepted and the report 
provided an update on the 
progress made in implementing 
the CRM service programme. A 

P
age 97



at their meeting on 29 January 2018. 
 

further report would be brought 
to a future meeting of the 
Committee. 
 

2017/18 Ombudsman 
Report 

The Committee receives the annual 
report on Ombudsman complaints for 
information. 

Cllr Freeman - 
Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 

Jane Le Fevre The report was noted. 

Fire Safety in High Rise 
Tower Blocks - Update 

To provide an update on safety in 
high rise tower blocks in Trafford. The 
last update was provided in March 
2018. 

Councillor Kevin 
Procter – 
Communities and 
Housing 

Richard Roe The report provided an update 
on high rise cladding in the 
borough. Remedial work was 
due to start soon, and a further 
update would be brought to the 
Committee in due course. 
 

Reducing Single Use Plastic 
in Trafford  

An amended Council motion relating 
to reducing single use plastic was 
agreed at full Council on 25 July. The 
motion recommended that this 
proposal be referred to Scrutiny for 
their input on delivery. 

Councillor Stephen 
Adshead – 
Environment, Air 
Quality and 
Climate Change 
 

Richard Roe The Committee welcomed the 
progress made so far. The 
report was noted. 

Overview Report An overview report including 
information on the Scrutiny work 
programme, task and finish group 
topics, Executive decisions, and a 
recommendation tracker. 
 

N/A - Report of the 
Scrutiny 
Committee 
Chairman 

Chris Gaffey The Chair confirmed that a new 
Task & Finish Group would be 
formed to conduct a review of 
aspects of the Council’s 
Housing Strategy. 

  

P
age 98



Wednesday 7 November 2018 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall 
Report submission deadline – midday on Tuesday 30 October 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

2019/20 Budget 
Presentation by the Leader 
of the Council  

The Committee will receive the 
2019/20 draft budget proposals, 
accompanied by a presentation to be 
delivered by the Leader of the 
Council. 
 

Cllr A Western – 
Leader of the 
Council 
Cllr M Cordingley - 
Finance 

Nikki Bishop  

Clean Air Plan (GM) The plan is to be approved by all 
Greater Manchester Authorities by 
end of 2018. 
 
Ultimately it is to be approved by 
Council on 28 November 2018 but 
before then it’s intended to go to 
Executive on 26 November. It is then 
proposed that the report and possibly 
a presentation go to the Scrutiny 
Committee on 3 October. 

Councillor Stephen 
Adshead – 
Environment, Air 
Quality and 
Climate Change 

Richard Roe The Clean Air Plan was 
presented to Councillors at an 
all-Member briefing in October. 
No further input from Scrutiny is 
required; therefore the item has 
been removed from the agenda. 

Investment Strategy To receive an update on the 
Investment Strategy 

Councillor James 
Wright – 
Investment, 
Regeneration and 
Strategic Planning 
 

Jane Le Fevre 
Richard Roe 

Last update provided to the 
Committee in September 2017. 
Rescheduled from 3 October 
meeting. 

Constitution Working Group 
Report 

A report of the Constitution Working 
Group setting out the proposed 
changes agreed by the Group. The 
report will also be referred to the 
Standards Committee and the 

Cllr Freeman - 
Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 

Jane Le Fevre 
Peter Forrester 

 

P
age 99



Executive, before being considered 
by full Council on 28 November 2018. 
 

Overview Report An overview report including 
information on the Scrutiny work 
programme, task and finish group 
topics, Executive decisions, and a 
recommendation tracker. 
 

N/A Chris Gaffey  

 

Budget Scrutiny 

Two Budget Scrutiny sessions have been scheduled for 4 December and 6 December 2018. 

  

P
age 100



Wednesday 9 January 2019 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall 
Report submission deadline – midday on Thursday 20 December 2018 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

2019/20 Budget Scrutiny 
Report 

A report produced by the Scrutiny 
Committee providing its 
recommendations on the 2019/20 
Budget Proposals. 
 

N/A – Report of 
the Scrutiny 
Committee 

Peter Forrester  

Scrutiny Task & Finish 
Group Review of the One 
Trafford Partnership 
 

A report of the Task & Finish Group 
formed to conduct a review of the 
One Trafford Partnership. The report 
will set out the Group’s findings along 
with their recommendations to the 
Executive. 
 

N/A – Report of 
the Scrutiny 
Committee 
Chairman 
 

Chris Gaffey  

Traffic Regulation Orders A report to provide an update on 
Traffic Regulation Orders in Trafford. 
 

Councillor Stephen 
Adshead – 
Environment, Air 
Quality and 
Climate Change 
 

Richard Roe  

Overview Report An overview report including 
information on the Scrutiny work 
programme, task and finish group 
topics, Executive decisions, and a 
recommendation tracker. 
 

N/A Chris Gaffey  

 

 

P
age 101



Wednesday 13 March 2019 – 6:30pm, Committee Rooms 2 & 3 Trafford Town Hall 
Report submission deadline – midday on Tuesday 5 March 2019 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead 
Officer(s) 

Comments 

Executive Response to the 
2019/20 Budget Scrutiny 
Report 

A report providing a response to the 
recommendations made by the 
Scrutiny Committee as part of the 
2019/20 Budget Scrutiny process. 
 

Cllr A Western – 
Leader of the 
Council 
Cllr M Cordingley 
- Finance 

Nikki Bishop  

Social Investment 
Framework – Trafford 
Housing Trust 

A report providing a further update on 
the arrangements for Trafford 
Housing Trust’s Social Investment 
Framework. 
 

Councillor Kevin 
Procter – 
Communities and 
Housing 

Richard Roe Following an update at the Scrutiny 
Committee meeting in March 2018, 
it was agreed that a further update 
be brought to the Committee to 
provide a progress update. 
 

Overview Report An overview report including 
information on the Scrutiny work 
programme, task and finish group 
topics, Executive decisions, and a 
recommendation tracker. 
 

N/A Chris Gaffey  

 

Items to be scheduled 

Item Information Executive 
Member(s) 

Lead Officer(s) Comments 

2018/19 ADP To receive the proposed 2018/19 
Annual Delivery Plan for any 
comments 

Cllr Freeman - 
Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 
 

Jane Le Fevre  The format of the 2018/19 ADP 
is still under consideration and 
will be brought to the Committee 
once it has been agreed. 

P
age 102



Further update on the 
Implementation of the CRM 
Services Programme 

To receive a report providing an 
update on the implementation of the 
CRM Service Programme. 
 

Cllr Freeman - 
Constitutional 
Reform and 
Resident 
Engagement 
 

Jane Le Fevre  At the meeting in October 2018, 
the Committee received the 
Executive’s response to the 
Task & Finish Group review 
conducted by the Committee. It 
was agreed that a further update 
on implementation be brought to 
a future meeting of the 
Committee. 
 

Fire Safety in High Rise 
Tower Blocks 

To receive a further update on safety 
in high rise tower blocks in Trafford.  
 

Councillor Kevin 
Procter – 
Communities and 
Housing 

Richard Roe The Committee received an 
update on this topic at their 
meeting in October 2018. It was 
agreed that a further report be 
brought to a future meeting to 
provide an update on progress. 
 

  

P
age 103



2. Task & Finish Groups 

 

Topic Information Members Status 

One Trafford Partnership 
Review 

The Committee have agreed 
to conduct a Task & Finish 
Group review of the One 
Trafford Partnership. 

Cllrs Acton (Chair), Bowker, 
Boyes, Coupe, Longden, 
Shaw, Thomas and Williams. 
 

The Group have held several 
meetings to gather information. Work 
is ongoing on producing a report of 
the Group’s findings. A further 
meeting will be scheduled to discuss 
the Group’s report and 
recommendations to the Executive. 
 

Affordable Housing in Trafford This has been identified as a 
possible area of focus for a 
Task & Finish Group review. 
 

Cllrs A. Williams (Chair), D. 
Acton, R. Bowker, J. Coupe 
and J. Holden. 

Members of the Committee have 
registered their interest in being part 
of the review. Democratic Services 
are currently canvassing for dates for 
the Group’s initial meeting. 
 

Review of the Council’s 
Budget Scrutiny Process (as 
raised in the 2018/19 Budget 
Scrutiny report) 

This has been identified as an 
area for review in previous 
Budget Scrutiny reports. 

N/A Not started. 

  

P
age 104



3. Recommendation Tracker 
 
Task & Finish Group Review of the Council’s CRM System (Presented to the Executive on 29 January 2018) 
 

Scrutiny Recommendation  Executive Response   

Recommendation 1 – That the Executive 
Member for Highways, Parks and 
Environmental Services continues to work 
closely with Amey on improving the interface 
between Amey systems and the Council’s CRM 
system to ensure residents and Members have 
an effective portal for reporting incidents, as well 
as ensuring that performance reporting is as 
accurate as possible. 
 

Completed 

Recommendation 2 – That the Executive 
consider conducting a review the Council’s 
procurement process for large IT projects to 
ascertain whether any lessons can be learned 
following the procurement of the CRM system. 
 

It is agreed that the Council will review the procurement process for any 
subsequent large IT project in the light of the lessons learned from the CRM 
project 

Recommendation 3 – That a further update on 
the CRM’s implementation be provided to 
Scrutiny in due course, reporting on progress 
against the timeline. 
 

Completed – update received at the Scrutiny meeting on 3 October 2018. 

 

P
age 105



4. Executive Decisions 

SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
14 SEPTEMBER – 29 OCTOBER 2018 

 

Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area for Decision Date of decision Decision Taker 

    

I033962 

 

Metrolink Airport Line, Sale Moor - Supplemental 

Undertaking from TfGM to Trafford Council 

 

16 Oct 2018 

 

Executive Member for Environment, 

Air Quality and Climate Change 

 

I033800 

 

Executive's Draft Revenue Budget Proposals 

2019/20 & MTFS 2020-22 

 

 

15 Oct 2018 

 

Executive 

I033874 

 

North Lonsdale Street, Gorse Hill - Proposal to 

Remove a Disabled Parking Space 

 

3 Oct 2018 

 

Corporate Director Place 

 

I033866 

 

Elton Street, Stretford - Proposal to introduce a new 

Disabled Residents' Permit Parking Space: 

Consideration of objections and proposal to introduce 

a 2nd Disabled Residents' Permit Bay 

 

3 Oct 2018 

 

Executive Member for Environment, 

Air Quality and Climate Change 

 

I033643 

 

Stretford Cycleway - Proposed Cycle Improvements, 

Restrictions and Mandatory Cycle Lanes: 

18 Sep 2018 

 

Executive Member for Environment, 

Air Quality and Climate Change 

P
age 106

https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=746
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=747
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=745
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=743
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=741


Consideration of Objections 

 

 

I033213 

 

Proposal to Consult on Adult Social Care Policy 

Changes 

 

 

17 Sept 2018 

 

Executive 

I033184 

 

Sale Town Centre - Public Realm and Movement 

Strategy 

 

 

17 Sept 2018 

 

Executive 

I033182 

 

Student Accommodation 

 

 

17 Sept 2018 

Executive 

 

I033183 

 

Trafford Affordable Housing Fund 

 

 

17 Sept 2018 

Executive 

 

I033595 

 

Stretford Cycleway Extension: Stretford Road, Old 

Trafford – Proposed Cycle Improvements, 

Restrictions and Mandatory Cycle Lanes 

 

 

14 Sep 2018 

Corporate Director Place 

 

I033616 

 

Amendments to Application Pack for Definitive Map 

Modification Orders 

 

13 Sep 2018 

 

Corporate Director Place 

 

I033786 Knowsley Avenue, Davyhulme - Proposed Advisory 

Disabled Bay: Consideration of Objections 

11 Sep 2018 Executive Member for Environment, 

Air Quality and Climate Change 

P
age 107

https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=740
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=739
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=738
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=737
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=735
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=736
https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=742


   

I033546 

 

Section 278 Works Fifth Avenue, Trafford Park 

 

11 Sep 2018 

 

Corporate Director Place 

 

 
Information on past Executive decisions can be found at http://www.trafford.gov.uk/about-your-council/councillors-and-
committees/councillors-and-committees.aspx  
 

 

P
age 108

https://democratic.trafford.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=734
http://www.trafford.gov.uk/about-your-council/councillors-and-committees/councillors-and-committees.aspx
http://www.trafford.gov.uk/about-your-council/councillors-and-committees/councillors-and-committees.aspx

	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	4 2019/20 DRAFT BUDGET PRESENTATION BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, INCLUDING UPDATE ON THE INVESTMENT STRATEGY
	Draft Budget Report 2019-20 & MTFS 2020-22
	Annex F Trafford Council - Asset Investment Strategy

	5 CONSTITUTION WORKING GROUP - PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION
	6 OVERVIEW REPORT

